Public Document Pack

g~

South Hams
District Council

SOUTH HAMS SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD - MONDAY, 3RD FEBRUARY, 2014

Agenda, Reports and Minutes for the meeting

Agenda No Item

1. Reports

Reports to Harbour Board:

a) Item 8 - Victoria Quay Pontoons (Pages 1 - 4)

b) Iltem 9 - Port Marine Safety Code (Pages 5 - 44)

c) Item 10 - Review of Byelaws Enforcement Policy (Pages 45 - 96)

d) Iltem 11 - Performance Management (Pages 97 - 124)

e) Item 12 - Matters For Future Consideration (Pages 125 - 128)

2. Minutes (Pages 129 - 134)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1a

AGENDA AGENDA
ITEM ITEM
8 SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 8

NAME OF COMMITTEE Salcombe Harbour Board
DATE 3 February 2014

REPORT TITLE VICTORIA QUAY PONTOONS
REPORT OF Salcombe Harbour Master
WARDS AFFECTED All South Hams

Summary of report:

To recommend the replacement of the Victoria Quay Pontoons.

Financial implications:

The replacement cost of the Pontoons will be under £50,000, which can be met from the
Harbour General Reserve.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Harbour Board RESOLVES to recommend to Council to bring
forward the replacement of the Victoria Quay Pontoons from the Financial

Year (FY) 2015/16 to FY 2013/14 and finance the project from the Harbour
General Reserve.

Officer contact:

lan Gibson — 01548 843791 (Internal 7104)

Page 1



BACKGROUND

11

1.2

The Victoria Quay Pontoons are over 30 years old and in recent years
have been deteriorating at an exponential rate. The concrete construction
is fragile, the floats are losing their buoyancy, the connecting pieces are
tired and present trip hazards and the joints are failing frequently.

The Victoria Quay Pontoons have been identified in the current Strategic
Business Plan 2012-2017 for replacement in Financial Year 2015/16 and
financial provision made for that year.

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The Victoria Quay Pontoons are removed each winter to protect them
from the worst of the winter storms, before they are replaced each spring
they are refurbished for the season ahead. The work currently required to
bring the pontoons up to standard is major and will entail the replacement
of all of the doubling boards, most of the rubber connectors, some of the
floats and the concrete surface needs numerous repairs.

With the pontoons due for replacement in two years it is not good value for
money to invest several thousands of pounds into new materials and at
least 2 months manpower into refurbishing the current pontoons.

It is therefore proposed to bring forward the replacement of the Victoria
Quay Pontoons to this financial year.

The RNLI are planning to refurbish the lifeboat berthing and access
pontoons this winter. This will enable any modifications to be made to the
RNLI Access Pontoon necessary to accommodate new Victoria Quay
Pontoons whilst the Access Pontoon is undergoing refurbishment.

It is proposed that the replacement pontoons would be a like for like
replacement.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1

3.2

Statutory Powers: Local Government Act 1972, Section 151. The Pier
and Harbour Order (Salcombe) Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).

There are no other legal implications to this report.

Page 2



4, FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The Pontoons have been budgeted for replacement in 2015/16 with an

estimated cost of £70,000. With the current improvement works at
Kingsbridge there is insufficient funds to finance this project early from the
Pontoon Reserve. However, the Harbour Authority Revenue Budget is
currently forecasting a surplus of £60,000 for FY 2013/14. These funds
will be transferred to the Harbour's General Reserve at the end of the FY
and will more than cover the current estimated replacement cost of
£50,000. Bringing forward the replacement of the Victoria Quay Pontoons
would make long term financial sense and prove a good use of the
2013/14 surplus to reduce long term maintenance costs.

4.2

Because of the short time line, the pontoons would need to be in place for

1 April 2014 when the seasonal licence for these berths start, an
exemption from contract procedure rules will be required. This has been

applied for.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 The risk management implications are:
Risk/Opportunity Risk Status Mitigating and
Impac_t/ Likeliho_qd/ Risk Score Management Actions
Severity Probability
Without major refurbishment Either extensive and
the Victoria Quay Pontoons expensive refurbishment of
are likely to fail during the the current pontoons to
2014 season. This would be keep them going until they
a major problem because the are replaced as planned in
60 boats accommodated on 3 3 9 2015/16 or

the pontoons could not be
found alternative berths. The
financial loss would be
£17,000 and the loss of
reputation disastrous.

To bring forward the
replacement of the
pontoons.

6. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Corporate priorities
engaged:

Community Life
Economy
Environment

Statutory powers:

The Pier and Harbour Order (Salcombe)
Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).

Page 3




Considerations of None
equality and human

rights:

Biodiversity None
considerations:
Sustainability None
considerations:

Crime and disorder None

implications:

Background papers:

Strategic Business Plan 2012-17.
Reserve Funding Request.

Application for Exemption from Contract
Procedure Rules.

Appendices
attached:

None

Page 4




Agenda Item 1b

AGENDA AGENDA
ITEM ITEM
9 SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL )

NAME OF COMMITTEE Salcombe Harbour Board

DATE 3 February 2014

REPORT TITLE PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE
REPORT OF Salcombe Harbour Master

WARDS AFFECTED All South Hams

Summary of Report

To appraise Members on Salcombe Harbour Authorities’ compliance with the Port
Marine Safety Code.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Harbour Board RESOLVES to:
a. Accept the findings of the Audit at Appendix 1 and 2.

b. Endorse and publish the 11™ edition of the Safety Management
System dated 2 December 2013 at Appendix 3.

Officer contact:

lan Gibson — 01548 843791 (Internal 7104)

1. BACKGROUND

1.1  The Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) was published in March 2000 and
revised in 2012 by Department of Environment, Transport and Regions
(DETR) Ports Division. Its aim is to establish an agreed national standard
for port marine safety and a measure by which harbour authorities can be
held accountable for the legal powers and duties which they have to run
harbours safely.

Page 5



1.2  To audit Salcombe’s compliance and advise on any changes,
developments and safety issues, the Harbour Authority has appointed an
independent designated person who reported on 2 December 2013 that,
in their opinion there is in place a safety management system which, if
maintained actively, complies with the requirements of the PMSC,

Appendix 1.

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2.1  During the Audit a number of issues were raised, these are detailed in the
Independent Designated Person’s letter at Appendix 2.
2.2  The Harbour's Safety management System has been updated to Issue 11

dated 2December 2013. The complete revised document is at Appendix
3.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  Statutory Powers: Local Government Act 1972, Section 151. The Pier
and Harbour Order (Salcombe) Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).
3.2  There are no other legal implications to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  None in the preparation of this report other than officer time although
there will be financial implications for the delivery of harbour safety

improvements.

RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1 The risk management implications are:
Risk/Opportunity Risk Status Mitigating and Management
Impact/ Likelihood/ | Risk Actions
Severity | Probability | Score
The Harbour Authority is The Harbour Board,
working towards a safe considers many routine
and improving service to 3 3 9 issues annually, topical
harbour users. items are brought to the
Board as they arise.
Failure to maintain a safe The Harbour maintains a
harbour could result in risk Safety Management
to life, limb and property. 3 3 9 System which is reviewed
bi-annually by an
independent Designated
Person.

Page 6




Corporate priorities
engaged:

Community Life
Economy
Environment

Statutory powers

The Pier & Harbour (Salcombe) Order Act 1954

Consideration of
equality and human
rights:

There are no equality or human rights issues with this
report

Biodiversity None
considerations:
Sustainability None
considerations:
Crime and disorder None

implications:

Background Papers:

Port Marine Safety Code Dated December 2012.

Appendices attached:

1. Nicholson Risk Management’s Report dated 2
December 2013.

2. Nicholson Risk Management'’s letter dated 2 December
2013.

3. Salcombe Harbour Board Safety Management System
Issue 11 dated 2 December 2013.

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Nicholsons

Risk Management

Fairfield House, Bosham Lane
Bosham, Chichester
West Sussex, P018 8HG

Telephone & Fax 01243-572115
Mobile 07802 441760
peter@peternicholson.com

REPORT

To the Salcombe Harbour Board.

As the independent designated person appointed by the Salcombe Harbour Board,
we report on the Safety Management System, Issue 10, dated 27th November 2012
and we have reviewed compliance during the past year.

A few revisions are necessary and we drawn up Issue 11, dated 2nd December 2013,
recording compliance with the Port Marine Safety Code and listing the topics
in hand for continuous improvement.

In our opinion there is in place a safety management system which - if maintained
actively - complies with the requirements of the Port Marine Safety Code and enables
the Salcombe Harbour Board to set out their safety policies, their organisation which

can put them into practice and their procedures for a planned and systematic approach
to policy implementation.

Nicholsons Management Ltd

2 December 2013

Nicholsons Risk Management is a division of Nicholsons Management Limited
VAT Registered Number 615165065

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Nicholsons

Risk Management

Fairfield House, Bosham Lane
Bosham, Chichester
West Sussex, P018 8HG
Telephone & Fax 01243-572115
Mobile 07802 441760
peter@peternicholson.com

The Harbour Master,

Salcombe Harbour Office,

Whitestrand,

Salcombe,

Devon, TQ8 8BU

2 December 2013

Dear lan,

Attached is my firm’s formal report on the new safety management system, with just minor
updates, and the annual certification that the Harbour Board are complying with the Port Marine
Safety Code.

I would now add some detailed comments arising out of the review process.

Harbour Activities

After very poor weather at the start of the year the excellent summer compensated so there was a
slight increase in activity over the previous year.

There has been an increase in the number of paddle boards using the Harbour, but generally there
have not been any significant changes in the mix of boats using the harbour. There are two
operators licenced to hire and instruct paddle boarding within the Harbour.

There was pressure on launching and landing capacity at the public slipway at Batson during the
Fish Quay re-development works, which over ran into the summer leisure season, but this was
more an inconvenience than a threat to navigation or health and safety because of the mitigating
measures employed to manage the conflicting activity.

Legislative Powers

The Marine Navigation Act 2013 enables harbours to apply to the DFT for powers of Harbour
Directions to amend the powers already held through the Harbour Act 1964. Salcombe is planning
to make an application for these powers.

The powers should include those to prohibit windsurfing in the main fairway in July and August;
prohibiting yachts of 7m or more from sailing between the Salcombe Harbour Hotel and the
Saltstone in July and August; and prohibiting scrubbing foulings which might pollute the water.

The Enforcement Policy is reviewed annually by the Council’s Legal team and Harbour Board.

Page 11



Accidents and Incidents

Salcombe Harbour maintains clear accident and incident records. A simplified incident reporting
form was introduced for the 2013 season to encourage the reporting of all incidents, no matter how
minor. A summary of incidents is now published in the annual report.

This year there were no fatalities, no fires and no significant environmental accidents or incidents.
Such pollution as there was came from storm overflow of sewage and an incident when the fuel
tank of a RIB split in the hot weather.

There were a number of minor accidents and incidents and five of them resulted in injuries,
ranging from cuts to shin and hand, a crushed chin, a broken nose and a badly damaged finger.

Risk control

All of the risk assessments have been reviewed this month. There were just a few changes and
updates required.

Each of the three Assistant Harbour Masters is involved in the review of risk assessment that
relate to their area of responsibility. Controls are implemented through the 17 Method Statements
for Operations in Salcombe Harbour. The SHA training programme makes sure that staff have the
necessary skills and awareness of the risk controls.

One new measure to improve safety with the use of lifejackets by those in tenders has been the
provision of RNLI lifejacket lockers, adjacent to the Harbour Office.

Consultation

Salcombe Harbour Board communicates with its neighbours, customers and stakeholders through
the Annual Report, the Harbour Guide and annual newsletters. There is feedback from all of these.
There is an annual customer satisfaction survey.

The Harbour Community Forums are formal consultation mechanisms that ensure the Harbour
Board has strong links with harbour users and the local community.

The Salcombe and Kingsbridge Estuary Association

The Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum;
The Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club

South Devon and Channel Shell Fishermen

Kingsbridge and Salcombe Marine Business Forum

Marine Infrastructure Reserve.

The District council is conducting an infrastructure condition survey. This survey will determine
the reserve to be set up for both maintenance and replacement of the Council’s marine
infrastructure around the Salcombe and Kingsbridge Estuary.

This proactive measure should help safeguard the Council’s assets which the boating public use
regularly. This includes slipways, steps, quay walls and piers.

Adhering to the principle that the user pays, from next Financial Year, the Harbour Authority will
make a regular contribution to this ring fenr:gd reser)ﬁ
age



Improvements Made

Where actions were identified last year, the following have now been completed,

1.

It is now a standard procedure for customers with a mooring licence to be asked to confirm that
the mooring tackle has been inspected and maintained where necessary.

The mooring policy allocating moorings to those who are resident within the South Hams has
been simplified and clarified.

The safe performance of skippers of trip boats and ferry boats is monitored and the requirement
for survey and stability tests enforced.

The RNLI now have on their fuel bund notices with warnings of its flammable contents.

The Fish Quay development has been completed. The new quay delivers an improved working
environment and the road access through the public car park is now much safer.

Incident data is now published in the annual report so that stakeholders may discern any trends.

Fire practices in SHB were held in the premises and a desk top exercise held to examine action to be
taken in various scenarios of fire afloat. Staff involvement has been recorded in the training records.

Initiated and ongoing

8.

Continue to seek ways of informing and educating harbour users on safety issues, such as
wearing lifejackets (automatic ones being the lifejacket of choice), life jacket maintenance,
don’t drink and drown and the dangers of venturing outside the harbour.

Continue to press the Yacht Club to require adequate personal buoyancy to be worn by all
competitors in boats that might capsize, including those sailing yawls.

Publish Notices to Mariners via electronic distribution, on harbour notice boards and on social
media.

Advice to call Coast Guard in an emergency, rather Police, Fire Brigade or Ambulance.
Promote safe practices in the Annual Report, in newsletters, in magazines and in the Harbour
Guide.

Promote training and refresher courses for those on sailing boats as well as power. Training is
now a 6th point added to the original 5 safety recommendations made by the RYA and RNLI.

Continue to press for the need for “Edge protection where 2m drop”.
The risk at Whitestrand has been repeatedly raised with the H&S committee of SHDC, who
own the quays.

Improvements Planned

The Safety Management System of the Salcombe Harbour Board includes a policy of continuous
improvement to bring the risks to As Low as Reasonably Practicable [ALARP]. Currently this
includes the following,

1. Complete the 5 Year Business Plan, with the aim of supplying 21st Century facilities without

changing the character of the estuary.

Work is ready to start on the Kingsbridge Pontoon and berthing arrangements upgrade.

This will remove vertical ladders access requirement with all access being down a bridge.

Page 13



N

Apply for powers of Harbour Directions which will, inter alia, help control windsurfing and
large yachts in the main fairway during July and August and scrubbing foulings throughout the
year.

3. The harbour approach will be made clearer by the removal of the Yacht Club Zero Mark, a white
buoy, and the replacement of the Yacht Club’s orange race Marks 1, 2 and 3 with Special
Marks, which will not be similar in appearance to port hand marks.

4. The Designated Person is to be invited to attend the July meeting of the Harbour Board.

5. Regularly review how IT developments can improve communications with customers, whether
on the web site, by email or by using social media.

6. Administration is to be improved with the introduction of the E Harbours software.

Many thanks for your help in completing this annual task.

Yours sincerely,

Peter Nicholson

Nicholsons Risk Management is a division of Nicholsons Management Limited VAT Registered Number 615165065

Page 14



ISSUE No 11, 2" December 2013

SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD

SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

In Compliance With

THE PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE

Prepared By:
The Harbour Master, with Nicholsons Risk Management

1
Page 15



Harbour Board Members

Councillor J Carter - Chairman
Mr C Harling — Vice-Chairman
Councillor K Wingate
Councillor S Wright
Councillor M Hicks

Mr H Marriage

Mr M Mackley

Mr A Thompson

Mr M Taylor

Mr G Burrell

2
Page 16



SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD  SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE

SUMMARY AND INDEX

Page

Policy: To have a Safety Management system that is structured, cohesive and auditable.

Al. Introduction

Salcombe Harbour Board’s constitution, powers and procedures comply with the Port Marine Safety
Code 2012 [PMSC] 4
This document describes the Salcombe Harbour Board’s [SHB] Safety Management System
comprising the 6 essential elements of policy, organisation, planning, measure, review and record.
A2. Outline Chart of Safety Management System 5
1) Policy -adopting health and safety policies which contribute to business performance 7
while meeting responsibilities to people and the environment in a way which fulfils both the spirit
and the letter of the law.

2) Organisation
2.1 - Establishing a positive organisation or culture which puts the policies into effective practice. 10

2.2 - Organisation Chart, “Family Tree” 11
2.3 - Training will also be an inherent part of Organisation 12
3) Planning

3.1 - Chart of Planning System, for planning, implementation, standards and procedures 13
3.2 - Consultation with Harbour Users 14
3.3 - Assessing risk and then adopting a planned and systematic approach to policy

implementation. Risk assessments are the key for judging what safety plans are needed. 15
3.4 Risk Assessments Appendix
3.5 Remove Any Unacceptable Risks 16
3.6 Management & Control of Significant Risks 17
3.7.1 Emergency plans 21
3.7.2 Conservancy, including, with SHDC, licensing 22
3.7.3 Environment 23
3.7.4 Management of Navigation 24
3.7.5 Pilotage 25
3.7.6 Marine Services 26
4) Measuring -measuring health and safety performance against predetermined standards. 28
5) Reviewing - auditing, monitoring and reviewing the performance so that lessons 27

are learned from all the relevant experience and are effectively applied.
Training and education are implicit as part of good safety management.

6) Recording and publishing —maintaining a record of due diligence. 29

The Board is responsible for policy. The Harbour Master is responsible for the organisation and the
facilities. The Staff implement the policy. Together these three categories form the system that puts
policy into effective practice.

3
Page 17



THE SALCOMBE HARBOUR SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Al - INTRODUCTION

Background.

The Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) was first published in March 2000 and revised by the Department
of Transport in 2009 and again in 2012. It aims to establish an agreed national standard for port marine
safety and a measure by which harbour authorities can be held accountable for the legal powers and duties
which they have to run their harbours safely.

Salcombe Harbour Authority

The overarching plans and policies of the Harbour are contained in the Salcombe Harbour Authority
Strategic Business Plan (2012-2017. They aim to discharge the roles and statutory duties which are placed
on the Harbour by the Pier and Harbour [Salcombe] Confirmation Act 1954, and which are empowered
by the Act.

The Statutory Harbour Authority for the Salcombe/Kingsbridge Estuary is the South Hams District
Council. The Council has set up the Salcombe Harbour Board, which is a committee of Full Council and
makes recommendations for approval by the full Council.

The terms of reference of the Salcombe Harbour Board are to administer Salcombe Harbour in
accordance with the 1954 Act, the recommendations of the Municipal Ports Review (2006) and the policy
of the Council, and to advise the Council on riparian matters affecting the Harbour, subject to overall
control of staffing and finance by the Council.

The 1954 Act is based on the 1847 Harbours, Docks and Piers Clauses Act that gives the Harbour Master
certain statutory powers concerning the management of the Harbour. Additionally, the 1964 Harbours Act
provides for the operation to be self-financing with the Authority able to fix its own rates in order to pay
for the work to be done.

The Harbour Limits are published in Admiralty Chart 28 and copied in the Harbour Guide.

The Aim of This Document.

The aim of this document is to describe and direct how the Salcombe Harbour Board complies with the
PMSC and how it will continue to do so.

Managing Salcombe Harbour - The Safety Management System.

The Salcombe Harbour Board is a safety conscious and a publicly accountable board. It is committed to
undertaking and regulating marine operations in a way that safeguards the harbour, its users, the public
and the environment

It has an established Safety Management System, the components of which are shown diagrammatically
on Page 5.

The safety procedures that form the plan to implement the safety system are set out on Page 4.

4
Page 18



A2 - OUTLINE CHART OF SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Rubkh
Board
Hath & Saff
SHety Rty Gude
Web

Orgarbatbn Fenrig I Messtring I Revinig | ?ﬂsﬁ& I .iﬁ?;?&%‘sml

. Recard
Check Lit . .
| nspect bns accterts &
of @ntros I hotlent s

——

| [ 1
Recards of . .
Acciert Book Revew & Report
See det abd Hrbor RODR to SHB S ey Aud H&SFe Rubkh
pbn for
mpementing
standards and
Jprocedur es



Management of these safety controls and procedures are set out in existing public documents, which,
together, form a cohesive web of management. As appropriate, relevant sections of these documents are
cross-referenced to PMSC standards:

- Salcombe Harbour Authority Strategic Business Plan (2012-2017)

- Salcombe Harbour Authority Annual Report (2013)

- Salcombe Harbour Authority Moorings Policy 2013

- Salcombe/Kingsbridge Estuary Environmental Management Plan (2005-2010)

- The Pier and Harbour [Salcombe] Confirmation Act 1954

- Salcombe Harbour Board Byelaws (2009)

- Salcombe Harbour Health & Safety at Work - Policy, Orders and Risk Assessment (2001)
- Salcombe Harbour Safety Controls (2013),

- Local Notices to Mariners and Harbour Publications, such as the Salcombe Harbour Guide
- Salcombe Harbour Emergency Plan

- The Oil Spill Response Plan (OPRC) and the Estuary Pollution Plan (EA)

- Salcombe Harbour Waste Management Plan

- Admiralty Chart 28 and 5602.10

6
Page 20



1. POLICY -SETTING A STANDARD

South Hams District Council and Salcombe Harbour Board are committed to running a safe, efficient
and welcoming harbour that caters for the needs of the local communities, visitors and the
environment. The six core principles that underpin all the activities of the Harbour Board are safety,
stakeholder involvement, value for money, environmental stewardship, catalyst for substantial
economic development and support for local employment. SHB will provide a safe port within the
limits of their jurisdiction, which is open to the public for the transportation of passengers and goods.
It will ensure the safety of their Harbour by exercising their statutory conservancy functions to a high
standard. It will regulate the use of the harbour by maintaining appropriate byelaws and ensuring that
these and other statutory regulations are enforced. The board will ensure such marine services as are
required for the safe use of their Harbour are available and are maintained and operated to a high
standard. The board will ensure that current plans are available to deal with emergency situations and
that the resources required to implement these plans are maintained and exercised.

The Policy incorporates input from officers, from staff and from harbour users as high standards of
safety can only be achieved through dialogue and co-operation.

SHB shall identify, quantify and manage the significant marine risks associated with Salcombe
Harbour. This will ensure there is proper control of movements of all vessels by regulating the safe
arrival, departure and movement within the harbour.

Existing powers shall be reviewed on a periodic basis, to avoid a failure in discharging duties or risk
exceeding powers.

Plans and reports shall also be published as a means of improving the transparency and accountability
of harbour authorities, as well as providing reassurance to the users of port facilities. SHB shall
consider past events and incidents; to recognise potential dangers and the means of avoiding them.

Salcombe Harbour Board are committed, specifically;
e To ensure that the best channels for navigation are determined, marked and monitored.
e To monitor lights and marks used for navigation within their jurisdiction.

e To provide hydrographic surveys of the estuary when required for the maintenance of up-to-date
charts (including charts of all moorings).

e To have an effective system for promulgating navigation warnings affecting the Harbour.

e To consider the effect of weather on harbour safety and promulgating warnings as required.

e To carry out all its functions with special regard to the possible environmental impact, protecting
the character of Salcombe and Kingsbridge Estuary.

e To consider the effects on harbour safety of proposed changes in use or harbour works.

e To maintain an up to date set of byelaws in consultation with port users and enforce them so as to
effectively regulate harbour use.

e To enforce all relevant statutory Harbour legislation, Health and Safety regulations, the Merchant
Shipping Act and Harbour byelaws as necessary.

.
Page 21



e To license and control of all moorings and to designate suitable anchorages within Harbour limits.

e To provide suitable resources to deliver effective marine services such as the provision of harbour
patrol craft.

e To operate efficiently and safely the Harbour workshops, machinery, plant, equipment, Harbour
vessels, mooring berths, pontoons, boat parks and the Fish Quay.

e To ensure that suitable plans for emergency situations are maintained and regularly updated and
exercised.

e To keep the duties and powers under review.
SHB shall also:
« confirm the roles and responsibilities of key personnel at the harbour authority;
+ outline present procedures for marine safety within the harbour and its approaches;
* measure performance against targets, after building a database recording incidents, including
near misses;
 refer to emergency plans that would need to be exercised; and
be audited on an annual basis
All employees have a duty to;
e Comply with all harbour safety procedures laid down by Salcombe Harbour Board.

e Ensure that marine operations are undertaken in a safe manner.

e To report hazard, risk, accident, incident or near miss to the Harbour Safety Officer.

Harbour users operating both commercially and for pleasure are responsible for;

e Their own health and safety and that of other harbour users who may be affected by their acts or
omissions.

e Complying with byelaws, directions and other regulations aimed at ensuring the safe use of the
Harbour.

Health and Safety Management System;

The Salcombe Harbour Board have adopted a health and safety management system in compliance
with the principles set out in the Port Marine Safety Code.

The health and safety management system includes policies for emergency plans, conservancy,
environment, management of navigation, pilotage and marine services.

Nominated Harbour Safety Officer
The Harbour Master is the Safety Officer. In his absence urgent harbour safety matters should be
referred to an Assistant Harbour Master.

8
Page 22



Emergencies in the Harbour

Emergencies where life is in danger must be notified at once to the Coastguard by dialing 999 or
through VHF channel 16.

Other emergencies should be notified to the duty harbour master by the quickest available means.
The nearest hospital is South Hams Hospital, Plymouth Road, Kingsbridge, 01548 852349

Reporting of Accidents Incidents and Near Misses
The public are asked to bring matters of safety - all accidents, incidents and near misses — promptly to
the attention of the Harbour Master at the Harbour Office, phone 01548 843791

The reports will be used to help in assessment of the effectiveness of the harbour safety management
system.

Councillor J Carter - Chairman

Adopted by the Board
3 February 2014

9
Page 23



2. ORGANISATION

Accountability and Responsibility - The Duty Holder and the Designated Person.

The Salcombe Harbour Board set the policy and the strategy. The Harbour Master and staff provide the
means of implementing the Policy.

Any decisions taken or policy set must take into account any issues related to harbour safety. The
consideration of such issues is to be minuted. The Board are responsible for deciding where risks are to
be insured, disclaimers issued and notices displayed.

The delegation of responsibility is contained in the detailed job descriptions for all harbour staff. The
organisation of the harbour staff is shown in the Organisation Plan on Page 11.

The Salcombe Harbour Board, as a Committee of the South Hams District Council, is the designated
Duty Holder in accordance with the Port Marine Safety Code.

The Councillors are collectively and individually responsible and they cannot assign or delegate their
accountability for compliance with the Code on the grounds they do not have particular skills.

T he “Designated Person” as described in the PMSC is Nicholsons Risk Management Limited.
The Designated Person has direct access to the Harbour Board.

Competence Standards.

SHB shall assess the fitness and competence of all persons appointed to positions with responsibility for
safe navigation.

Employees of the Harbour are recruited and selected on their suitability to fill their job descriptions.
Employees are appraised annually and, at that time, their job description, performance and training
requirements are reviewed. Reports on harbour office staff are held in confidential personnel files in the
harbour office.

Recruitment

The Harbour Master recruits suitably qualified staff to fill the roles set out in the following Organisation
Plan

10
Page 24



2.2 SALCOMBE HARBOUR AUTHORITY — ORGANISATION PLAN

Harbour Master

South Devon AONB
Estuaries Officer

Assistant Harbour Master
Logistics and Maintenance

3 x Harbour
Technician

Assistant Harbour Master
Moorings

Assistant Harbour Master
Administration

4 X Moorings Officer

1.5x
Administration
Assistant

13 X Seasonal Staff
April to September

11
Page 25




2.3 TRAINING POLICY

It is recognised that the successful implementation of the Harbour’s Safety Management System can
only be achieved through a policy of continuous training, with regular reviews of specific training
requirements.

The training policy is to undertake training where appropriate for all members of staff in order to
provide the services required by the Authority and expected by the stakeholders. Officers and staff are
to be suitably trained to be competent and qualified up to a minimum national standard to fulfil their
roles within the organisation.

e Safety training is regarded as an indispensable ingredient of an effective Port Marine Safety
Management System and programme as it is with Health and Safety matters. It is essential that all
involved in the safe management and operation of the port will be trained to perform their
operations safely

e The main training profile for the Harbour Board is to ensure that all members of staff are qualified
to operate all the SHB launches and the many items of equipment utilised in the daily operation of
the harbour. This includes the re-validation of these qualifications. Training is seen as continuous
to meet the ever-increasing demands made on SHB.

e It is vital that new members of staff are promptly qualified in those areas where deficiencies are
recognised. Members of staff are trained both internally and externally to achieve the requisite
level. Once achieved, the staff member will then be streamed according to the needs of the service
centre and his proven skills

e Due to the seasonal nature of the work undertaken by the service centre, most of the harbour staff
perform service delivery duties during the summer months and maintenance operations during the
winter months. Both aspects require training.

e Records of training show clearly the type and the date of training received, planned dates and
required but no date yet fixed.

e Newly recruited personnel whose duties require them to go afloat require a minimum qualification
of RYA Powerboat 2. These personnel will be trained locally to drive the vessels operated by the
SHA, this will include the requirement to be qualified as a licensed Boatman.

e There will be induction training for seasonal staff prior to commencing their duties, in line with the
requirements of the Port Marine Safety Code.

e The importance of “on the job” training in the workplace should not be underestimated as it forms
an invaluable part of the overall training requirement.

Team Briefing

Regular team briefs are held to ensure good communications and quality, both in service and in
delivering health and safety.

12
Page 26



bed

3.1 PLANNING - RISK ASSESSMENTS AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT

Pannhg
. X Consut at bn Rek Assessment
Phnnhg Ser vces
M anagement of
Em ergency Pans Conservancy %Va'r?;g”;ni”e‘;' Navigat bn Fotage M AR NE SERVI CES
[ I ]
MV
Search and Olspl Estuary
G eneral Fre Pan 'E:g;reeg;]m Rescue Response Protect bn
tenshg Works Works & Buoyage & s Prevahg
23 & Dredghg Hydrogr aphy Dr edging Navgat bn ails Anchorng Condt bns
Satom be / Kngsbrige
Estuary Management PHn Educat on
Dr ect bns Patrob Bye- Laws Zones Events M oor hg Ltences!
O aft Regubtbn 5 Salage . M oor hg
Passenger Qraft] Townage W orkboat s Dvhg Fuel Bar ge Buoy M ant enanc M ait enance

13




3.2 - CONSULTATION

Consultation with harbour users continues through public meetings and through the harbour community
forum to members of the Harbour Board who represent those groups as recommended in the Municipal
Ports Review and the Guidelines for good governance.

Consultation Process

1. To ensure that the Harbour Board has strong and direct links with both harbour users, local
communities and other external organisations with an interest in the Salcombe-Kingsbridge
Estuary, a formal consultation mechanism has been set up. Four not-for-profit community
groups have registered their interest to work with the Council in relation to its future Harbour
activities:

The Salcombe and Kingsbridge Estuary Association

The Salcombe - Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum

The Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club

The South Devon and Channel Shell Fishermen

Kingsbridge and Salcombe Business Forum

orwdPE

2. The five groups are recognised as ‘Harbour Community Fora’ and form part of a formal
consultation mechanism for the Harbour Board.

3. The list of three groups is not exhaustive and it is anticipated that further community groups be

recognised and added as time progresses.

Consultation is a continuous and wide-ranging process. It includes meetings with Salcombe Yacht Club,
the Forums, notice boards, web page, public meetings, twitter and the Harbour Newsletter.

14
Page 28



3.3 RISK ASSESSMENT

It is the policy of the Salcombe Harbour Board to have powers, policies, plans and procedures based on a
formal assessment of hazards and risks, and to have a formal marine safety management system.

The marine safety management system shall be in place to ensure that all risks are controlled — the

more severe ones must either be eliminated or kept ‘‘as low as reasonably practicable’’ (ALARP).

Detailed Risk Assessments.

The activities and the responsibilities of Salcombe Harbour Authority are covered in specified areas, for
each of which there were drawn up a detailed risk assessment following the principles laid down by the
Health and Safety Executive.

These comprehensive risk assessments have been, revised where necessary and then endorsed by the
Harbour Master and his assistants on 23rd November 2013.

The aim of this process is to eliminate the risk or, failing that, to reduce risks to as low as reasonably
practicable. Formal risk assessments shall be used to:

e identify hazards and analyse risks;

e assess those risks against an appropriate standard of acceptability; and

o where appropriate, consider a cost-benefit assessment of risk reducing measures.

The level of risk was determined after considering the risk to Life, to the Environment, to Port
Operations and, to Port Users

The process of compiling the risk assessments is shown in the flow chart.

Each hazard is given a likelihood rating between 1 and 3; 3 being the more likely.

Against each hazard the severity of harm has then been assessed, both in terms of direct injury to
people and environmental damage, again using a scale of 1 to 3.

For personal injury a “score” of 3 represents a major injury or a fatality.

For environmental damage, 3 is given if regional assistance is required.

Significant Risks

Significant risks are identified by those activities that attract a score of 6 or more. These risks must be
mitigated by the implementation of specific control measures.

If for any reason the safety management system identifies a control measure that is not effective the
activity is to cease until suitable control measures are in place and the risk mitigated to as low as
reasonably practical.

Risk Controls

The safety controls for the risks identified, listed on pages 17 to 20, are to be reviewed and amended
where necessary.

15
Page 29



3.5 - REMOVE UNACCEPTABLE RISKS
THE GREATEST RISKS IDENTIFIED IN THE RISK ASSESSMENTS

There is a preferred hierarchy of risk control principles

o eliminate risks -by avoiding a hazardous procedure, or substituting a less dangerous one;

e combat risks -by taking protective measures to prevent risk;

e minimise risk -by suitable systems of working.
No risk was assessed both as frequently occurring and the consequence being either a serious injury or a
pollution incident requiring national assistance.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENTS

Nevertheless, the Harbour seeks to make continuous improvements. The priorities identified by the
Harbour Master for next year, in addition to various continuing actions already initiated, and now
published are:-

1. Complete the 5 Year Business Plan, with the aim of supplying 21st Century facilities without changing
the character of the estuary.
Work is ready to start on the Kingsbridge Pontoon and berthing arrangements upgrade.
This will remove vertical ladders access requirement with all access being down a bridge.

2. Apply for powers of Harbour Directions which will, inter alia, help control windsurfing and large
yachts in the main fairway during July and August and scrubbing foulings throughout the year.

3. The harbour approach will be made clearer by the removal of the Yacht Club Zero Mark, a white buoy,
and the replacement of the Yacht Club’s orange race Marks 1, 2 and 3 with Special Marks, which will
not be similar in appearance to port hand marks.

4. The Designated Person is to be invited to attend the July meeting of the Harbour Board.

5. Regularly review how IT developments can improve communications with customers, whether on the
web site, by email or by using social media.

6. Administration is to be improved with the introduction of the E Harbours software.

16
Page 30



3.6 - MANAGEMENT OF SAFETY CONTROLS —CHECK LIST

TYPE OF CONTROL

DETAIL OF CONTROL

Navigation Buoys Etc

“Conservancy Duties” as implemented through the Salcombe Harbour policies, in
compliance with Trinity House guidelines and their software package, PANAR. The
annual audits continue. Set and meet Salcombe Harbour Board performance
indicators. Local Lighthouse Authority, managing and maintaining 66 marks and
beacons to Trinity House standards, checked by annual Trinity House Inspection.
Beacons at harbour entrance replaced with 6 lateral buoys. Beacons not removed but
surplus to requirement.

Patrol Boats

Salcombe Harbour patrols, backed up by Water Taxi and Night Security Patrol, to
give, almost a 20/24 hour coverage in the summer months and 8/24 during the
winter.

Periodic patrols by police afloat in SHB boat.

Police and UK Borders Agency deal with drugs, crime, theft, immigration and
customs -. South Devon and Severn IFCA and MMO fisheries patrols..

Notices

Notice Board at Harbour Office, including weather forecast.

Signs, e.g. “Speed Limit 6 Knots”

Byelaws displayed on Notice Boards, on web and at launching locations.

Notices at Fish Quay and Whitestrand. Information and warning notices on some
quays and pontoons—RNLI format for beach and slipway notices.

Information, advice and warnings in RNLI format on launching slipways.

Publications

Annual Harbour Guide. Annual Report.

Notices to Mariners published on HO notice board, on web, to e-mail subscribers and
on YC notice board.

Admiralty and other charts, Macmillan Reeds.

Web sites www.salcombeharbour.co.uk and southams.gov.uk include papers and
minutes of SHB meetings

Annual Harbour Newsletter and contributions to those of Yacht Club, Yawls and Rial
News.

Twitter @Salcombeharbour

Personal, Protective Equipment

Life jackets — worn by harbour staff when afloat and when working on quays when
local risk assessment consider it necessary
— carried by racing boats as ISAF Rules of Racing
—worn as Club rules for all but yawl racing
— MCA advice on Safety at Sea, but no legal compulsion
— One for each passenger on SHB licensed vessels
— Waterproof suits for those working on foreshore moorings.
Kill Chords attached to lifejackets for personal use in appropriate boats
Workshop hard hats, masks, boots, gloves, goggles and ear defenders. Boots, gloves,
wet weather gear and dry suits for environmental work. High visibility jackets.

Access and Guards

No requirement for guards of any sort on private pleasure craft.

No requirement for inspection of fishing boat or equipment if under 12m

Quays are not normally guarded, as this would negate their function as loading and
unloading points. Quays are often unlit.

Slipways are subject to a routine inspection and are cleaned of weed.

. Fencing round boat parks for winter storage.

Salcombe Harbour boats equipped for safe operation. Those carrying passengers are
licensed by South Hams DC.

The workshop machinery has the necessary guards.

Fire alarms and fire extinguishers in harbour offices and workshops.

Access to some pontoons managed during large events to prevent overcrowding.
Access to Fish Quay controlled by barrier access. Fish quay covered by
comprehensive CCTV.

Inspections of Harbour machinery

LOLA: Six month Inspection by qualified engineer. Twelve month inspection by
insurance company

PUWER: Power tool inspection — by Insurance Company’s engineers

Electrics — Annual Council organised PAT inspection of electrical equipment. The
Council’s electrician has in inspected electrical installations of office and workshop
in 2009. Regular Legionella inspection

17
Page 31



http://www.salcombeharboour.co.uk/

Hydrographic Survey

As Conservancy Duties and as agreement with the Hydrographic Office.
The Bar and the leading line surveyed in 2011
Batson Channel surveyed and dredged in 2011

Qualification Or Permits

No licence or permit required to sail in Salcombe Harbour; payment of
harbour dues prior to launching.

Powered craft are not subject to any official safety check. RYA PB2 taken as
the minimum pre-requisite for power boat driving before training as a Local
Authority Boatman.

Fishermen need no requirement or qualification, training or assessment of
ability.

Fuel barge subject to licensing by Devon County Council.

Any diving within the harbour requires permit granted by Harbour Master.
HSE Commercial Diving standards and practices for professionals

The general public has no right to shoot over the foreshore, but the
Kingsbridge and District Pigeon Shooting Club are given a Council licence.
Shotgun Licences. Shooting Club own their own Risk Assessment and
method statement for shooting activities around the estuary

License, conditional on carrying out maintenance, required to lay a mooring.
Salcombe Harbour licence required, after MMO Licence, for any work below
the MHW on foreshore, private jetties, hards and sea defences. Only granted
if the work is within the Environmental Code of Practice. The conditions of
the licence will require safe working.

No dredging other than by contractors approved by the Harbour Master.
MCA Certificate requirements for trip boats venturing outside the Harbour
Limits and for boats carrying more than 12 passengers.

Ferry boats, trip boats and hire boats (Under 12 people) as HM, acting for
South Hams DC, Licence Requirements.

Vessels and Skippers of chartered boats venturing outside the Harbour as
MCA Codes of Practice.

Ferries operating in the Harbour up to 12 passengers must have SHDC Boat
and Boatman’s licenses.

Vessels wanting to dry out must book in advance with the office.
Experienced workshop staff, with some formal qualifications.

See Training spreadsheet for other courses and qualifications

The Contractor will own their own method statement and risk assessment
and comply with the conditions of the MMO license.

The diving contractor will have a Method statement and risk assessment
covering all of their diving activity.

All contractors require to have adequate 3rd party insurance to the value of
£5 Million public liability and to be registered with Harbour Authority.
Crane operators require qualification endorsement card.

All personnel involved in lifting and chocking to be trained.

Tenders defined as under 3.2m and no more than 6HP engine. All vessels to
be registered and pay Harbour dues (£3m third party liability Insurance.

18
Page 32




Supervision & Instruction

Responsible Harbour Staff manage the harbour operations, with job
descriptions and operating procedures.

The public need no qualification, training or ability

Responsible organisers such as the sailing clubs and the sailing schools, with
responsible race officers, (who may be RYA qualified), as recorded in their
risk assessments. Method statement and Risk assessment required for all
activities which are not routine, such as regattas and events. Cooperation of
SYC briefing regatta competitors

Choice of suitable boats; no catamarans, cruisers or sports boats racing in the
Fairway.

Choice of suitable race areas, particularly for juniors.

Safety boats.

Kingsbridge and District Pigeon Shooting Club rules.

The boatyards in Salcombe Harbour appear to be well and responsibly
managed. They must comply with HSE law and regulations.

Code of Practice is issued by The Yacht Harbours Association.

The skippers of trip boats are responsible and competent.

Most of the slipways are supervised in the Summer. Boat park attendant
now works all year around to supervise slipway and winter storage
operations during winter months.

The workshop is managed by the experienced Assistant HM Logistics and
Maintenance. Environmental activities and guided walks are managed by the
AONB Estuaries Officer, who gives a formal Health and Safety briefing.

Harbour Operating Procedures

17 SHDC Operating Procedures, reviewed annually.

Reporting of collisions: simplified report form

Clothing and equipment.

Alder & Allan Ltd retained as Oil Pollution Response Consultants, Oil spill
response plan reviewed annually and endorsed by MCA..

Use of SHB vessels - guidance to staff

Vessel operating procedures, duty boatman, towing, barge, speed limit
enforcement, boat park, lifting, lone working, Maintenance of deep water and
of foreshore moorings and pressure washing.

Harbour Patrols, Harbour Taxi and Collection of Dues

Work experience. Guided Walks & Activities

Maintained moorings - record of maintenance cycle. Litter pick up.
Moorings fully serviced annually, photographic evidence of mooring eyes.
6 monthly inspection of strops. Annual Insurance Inspection of hoist.
Guided Walks: Inform Office of return time, which should be within
working hours. Weather to be considered before starting walks

Command, Control & Coms

Harbour Office monitors channels12 and 14 during the working day and the
Harbour Master is on call by telephone to the MCA 24 hours a day.

Tor24 provide out of hours call out procedure and monitoring of lone
working. Fish Quay and Whitestrand covered by CCTV.

Mobile phones issued to all staff who are not office based.

Channel 16 available throughout the estuary, via MCA rebro.

Wi-fi available for visitors.

Environment

Limits set on swinging moorings and on pontoons.

Visitor pontoons piled — reducing seabed scouring.

Port Waste Management Plan, MCA approved

Sewage pump out facility for holding tanks.

Local Planning authority, the Environmental Agency and Duchy of Cornwall
are always consulted before a licence to work is granted.

SHB environmental management systems implemented through the
Environmental Officer. See emergency plans below.

Operation of environmentally friendly scrubbing grid which removes
pollutants from antifouling scrubbings. Power washing of boat hulls to be
conducted by approved contractor Slipway cleaning inspections to be
recorded. Defects to be reports to Assets at SHDC for rectification.
Hydraulic oil — spill kit available if required

COSHH

Paints Strippers, Extractor fan for welding fumes
Slipway cleaner (not bleach)
Domestic quantities of fiberglass resin and hardener.

19
Page 33




Law

1847 Harbours, Docks and Piers Clauses Act

The Pier and Harbour [Salcombe] Confirmation Act 1954, the 1964
Harbours Act and the Health and Safety law and regulation.

HSE Regulations on Diving At Work.

International Regulations for the Prevention of Collisions at Sea [IRPCS]

Bye Laws

Salcombe Harbour bye laws modified (2008), Including Care & Caution, the
6 and 8 knot speed limits, insurance requirements and permit display.

Kite windsurfing and water skiing are never permitted. Windsurfing in July
and August is not permitted between the Marine Hotel and the Fuel Barge
Salcombe Harbour Nature Reserve bye laws IFCA Bye-Laws regarding Bass
Fishing. Bait digging for personal use is allowed by the Nature Reserve Bye-
Laws, commercial bait digging is prohibited.

Public Health Act (Amended 1964) re SHDC boat and boatman licensing.
Enforcement policy reviewed annually.

Direction

Special, not general, as authorised by the 1954 Act and by Council decisions.
Rules of Racing, ISAF. Risk assessments for events agreed with Harbour
Master. Numbers for events limited.

Propellers to be covered by bucket to protect other boats and personnel.
Discourage swimming in the anchorages or across the harbour or from
harbour pontoons. Direct enquiries about open water swimming to use
sheltered bays such as North Sands and have a safety boat in attendance.

Harbour Policy

SHB’s PMSC compliance policy, Strategic Business Plan, Salcombe
Harbour Authority Moorings Policy and S &K Environmental Management
Plan.

Harbour Authority contributing to SHDC Marine Infrastructure reserve for
the maintenance of SHDC Marine infrastructure used by commercial and
leisure users.

H & S Policy

Council H & S Policies for Harbour and for staff

H & S Management System

Management System
Maintenance of premises.

Training Programme

Induction and training programme.
Training records
Continuous development

Emergency Plans

Salcombe Harbour Fire Plan, and specific plan for MV Egremont- reviewed
in 2011 with Fire Services and SHB.

Salcombe Harbour Emergency Plan — Reviewed 2013

The Qil Spill Response Plan (OPRC) and the Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary
Booming (Pollution) Plan (EA) — Reviewed 2013

Regulated VHF procedures and channel allocation

H M Coastguard and RNLI emergency plans and resources, including all
weather Lifeboat and inshore life boat from Union St boathouse, slipway and
pontoon

Harbour Offices: Fire drill and fire practices

First aiders “Emergency First Aid” trained every 3 years and first aid boxes.
Life saving apparatus, lifebuoys, fire extinguishers and boarding ladders,
located at quays, slipways, boat parks and pontoons. All pontoons to have
emergency cabinets with fire extinguisher, life belt with line and boarding
ladders.

If life and limb at risk, Call CG and request Lifeboat. If property at risk,
await a full team, no heroics.

20
Page 34




3.7.1 EMERGENCY PLANS

Emergency Policy of Salcombe Harbour Board:

The safety management system will include preparations for emergencies
— and these should be identified as far as practicable from the formal risk assessment.
Emergency plans need to published and exercised.

Emergency Organisation and Management Responsibility

The Salcombe Harbour emergency plans detail the immediate action to be taken by harbour staff and the
emergency services in the event of most foreseeable emergencies.

They are held by all emergency services and local authorities.

The various emergency plans, in addition to the general Salcombe Harbour Emergency Plan, comprise:-
e Salcombe Harbour Fire Plan,
e Specific fire plan for MV Egremont
e The Oil Spill Response Plan (OPRC) and the Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary (Pollution) Plan
(EA)
e H M Coastguard and RNLI emergency plans and resources, now including both an all weather
Lifeboat and an inshore lifeboat.
e Life saving apparatus located at quays, slipways, boat parks and pontoons
e Harbour Office and Harbour Workshop:
Fire drill and fire practices
First aiders and first aid boxes.
Procedure to call Emergency Services
e Mud Rescue Plan.

The emergency response relies on the regulated VHF procedures and channel allocation. It has been much
improved now that channel 16 can be received in Salcombe Harbour.

Training for Emergencies include Oil Spill Response and Emergency Plan Exercises
The MAIB Safety Digest is used to see if lessons can be learnt for Salcombe from accidents investigated

at other harbours, relevant lessons are displayed on the Harbour Office Notice Board and distributed to
Fishermen and Sailing establishments and clubs.

21
Page 35



3.7.2 - CONSERVANCY

Conservancy Policy of Salcombe Harbour Board:

A. SHB recognises its a duty to conserve the harbour so that it is fit for use as a port, and a duty of
reasonable care to see that the harbour is in a fit condition for a vessel to use it.

B. SHB will aim to provide users with adequate information about conditions in the harbour.

C. SHB recognises the extent of its duty and powers as local lighthouse authority; and specific powers in
relation to wrecks.

Conservancy Organisation and Management Responsibility

Hydrography.

SHB follows the UKHO Code of Practice on the Provision of Hydrographic Information.
Hydrographic records of dredged channels in the harbour are maintained by the harbour office.
The Hydrographic Office receives all hydrographic information and Local Notices to Mariners produced

by the Harbour. A formal agreement with Hydrographic Office is in place.

Admiralty Chart 28 and 5602.10 Salcombe Harbour are kept up to date with Hydrographic Notes. A
new edition is being prepared.

Works and Dredging Licences.

The Harbour has regulations and conditions for the issue and control of works licences.
No dredging, other than in exceptional circumstances, is undertaken other than by Salcombe Harbour
Authority or by its contractors.

Buoyage and Navigation Aids.

The harbour has a comprehensive, well maintained and modern system of aids to navigation based on
risk assessment and installed in consultation with Trinity House. The routine inspection and
maintenance regime is laid down and records are kept.

Anchorages.

Anchorages are shown on Chart 28 & 5602.10 and their operation is subject to risk assessment and
review. The anchorages and the areas where not to anchor are promulgated in annual publications.

Prevailing Conditions.

The Met Office’s Shipping Forecast and their European Synoptic Chart are displayed at the harbour
office and updated daily. Information is readily available in the media and on the web.

22
Page 36



3.7.3 - ENVIRONMENT

Environment Policy of Salcombe Harbour Board:

SHB recognises its duty to exercise its functions with regard to nature conservation and other related
environmental considerations.

Environmental Management Plan.

The policy and functional objectives for managing the Salcombe-Kingsbridge estuary as a marine Local
Nature Reserve (LNR) and marine Site of Special Scientific Interest, within a designated Heritage Coast
and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, in an environmentally responsible and sustainable way are
contained in the Salcombe / Kingsbridge Estuary Environmental Management Plan.

Limits have been set on the total number of moorings and pontoons.

The Harbour Authority have adopted their Waste Management Plan. The Harbour has an
Environmental Management System. There is now a sewage pump out facility for holding tanks.

The Harbour Authority’s Marine Conservation Officer maintains good liaisons and working links with
English Nature and the Environmental Agency, who are consulted on potentially damaging operations
(PDO’s) before a licence to work is granted.

There are several special emergency plans drawn up to deal with accidents that might potentially
threaten the environment

Education.

The harbour has a Marine Conservation Officer with an ongoing programme of environmental
education, both formal and informal. This includes a very wide range of awareness raising initiatives,
including interpretation boards, information leaflets, illustrated talks and guided walks throughout the
estuary.

The Marine Conservation Officer provides close formal links with schools and universities and more
informal links with local community and special interest groups in the area.

All known educational activities in the harbour are subject to risk assessments and are led by qualified
staff.

23
Page 37



3.7.4 - MANAGEMENT OF NAVIGATION

Policy for Management of Navigation:

A. Salcombe Harbour Board has rules in byelaws and directions, which every user must obey as a
condition of his or her right to use the harbour.

B. Salcombe Harbour Board recognises its duty to make proper use of powers to make byelaws, and to give
directions and to regulate all vessel movements in its waters.

C. These powers shall be exercised in support of the policies and procedures developed in the authority’s
safety management system, and should be used to manage the navigation of all vessels.

D. Salcombe Harbour Board has clear policies on the enforcement of directions, and should monitor
compliance.

E. If they were appropriate in a particular case, the powers of direction should be used to require the use of
a port passage plan.

Management of Navigation Organisation and Management Responsibility

Local Port Service

SHB regard it as most unlikely that large ships would be able to enter the harbour and assess the risks as
not meriting a Vessel Traffic System.

To the extent that there is a Local Port Service this comprises published information in Reeds Almanac,
on the Harbour Authority web site and in the annual Harbour Guide.

Plan: Directions and Port Passage Guidance.

There is no standing requirement for any vessel in Salcombe Harbour to file a port passage plan.
Special directions are issued when the situation requires such as movement of sail training vessels and
others constrained by their draft.

Patrols.

The Harbour maintains a comprehensive patrol presence on the Harbour to enforce byelaws and other
directions. There is a 24 hour emergency call out system in operation.

Byelaws.

The Salcombe Harbour Board has byelaws, revised in 2008, that provide effective control measures to
manage the hazards identified in the risk assessments. The byelaws have been reviewed and submitted
to the DfT.

Events.

The Harbour Master works closely with all sailing clubs and organisations who use the estuary. Special
arrangements are made to promote the safety of the events they run.

Moorings.

The Salcombe Harbour Authority maintains moorings to a high standard With all moorings being
maintained annually.

Procedures are laid down for the safe operation of the mooring barge.

Conditions for mooring licences, issued by the Harbour, require that all moorings are fit for purpose and
are inspected annually.

24
Page 38



3.7.5 - PILOTAGE

Policy for Pilotage:

Salcombe Harbour Board has a duty to keep the need for pilotage and any service provided under constant
and formal review.

Organisation and Management Responsibility

The Salcombe Harbour Authority is not a Competent Harbour Authority (CHA), but is a Statutory
Harbour Authority (SHA). It does not, therefore, have any powers to conduct or require pilotage.

The comprehensive risk assessments now carried out have not revealed the need for Salcombe Harbour
Board to seek any powers of pilotage.

25
Page 39



3.7.6 MARINE SERVICES

Policy for Marine Services:

A. Salcombe Harbour Board’s safety management system shall cover the use of harbour craft and the
provision of moorings.

B. The formal safety assessment shall be used to identify the need for, and potential benefits for safety
management, of harbour craft.

C. Salcombe Harbour Board shall ensure that Salcombe Harbour Authority vessels or craft which are used
in the harbour are fit for purpose and that crew are appropriately trained and qualified for the tasks they
are likely to perform.

D. Salcombe Harbour Board shall ensure that byelaws and the power to give directions are available for
these purposes.

Marine Services Organisation and Management Responsibility

Craft Requlation

e MCA Certification is required for commercial vessels, including trip boats, venturing outside
the Harbour Limits and or carrying more than 12 passengers..

e Passenger vessels, including ferryboats, (Under 12 people) require a South Hams DC
Licence.

e Vessels and Skippers of chartered boats venturing outside the Harbour are regulated
according to MCA Codes of Practice.

e Ferries carrying no more than 12 people must have SHDC Boat and Boatman’s licences.
Those carrying more than 12 must have MCA certification

Towage
Only those staff who have successfully completed a towage training course are permitted to take vessels
in tow.

Workboats.

There are procedures for the safe operation of harbour launches based on the risk assessments.

Diving
Any diving within the estuary requires a permit to dive signed by the Harbour Master.

HSE Commercial Diving standards and practices for professionals.

Dredging

Dredging is only carried out by contractors approved by the Harbour Master.

26
Page 40



Salvage

Only suitably experienced staff would be allowed to get involved in a salvage operation.

Fuel Barge Afloat

The fuel barge located in the estuary is subject to an annual Petroleum Licence issued by Devon County
licence to sell petrol and DERV. The Harbour Master’s approval is required before any licence is issued
or renewed.

The Harbour Masters Permission is required before the Fuel Barge gets underway within the estuary.
All movements of the fuel Barge will be escorted by a Harbour work boat.

27
Page 41



MEASURE COMPLIANCE

Recording Accidents and Incidents.

An incident log is maintained on the Harbour Office computer. Records are kept of all accidents,
incidents and oral complaints that come to the attention of the Harbour Authority. Any follow up action
that may be required is recorded. Written complaints and replies are held on file. Major incidents are
subject to immediate review to establish cause and to validate control measures.

Safety Inspections and Checklist of Controls.

There is a calendar for the review of safety topics.

There is also a checklist of control measures.

5. REVIEW

SHB will monitor, review and audit the marine safety management system on a regular basis
Performance of the system shall be assessed against internal performance indicators and where
appropriate, by benchmarking against other ports that have adopted good practice.

Procedure for Reviews

The Harbour Master will include both in his staff meetings and in the Board Meetings a review of any
accidents, incidents or near misses.
Investigations by the Harbour Master of marine incidents have two essential purposes:
a) to determine the cause of the incident, with a view to preventing a recurrence of that incident
(or similar); and
b) to determine if an offence has been committed: if so, there may be the need on the part of a
harbour authority to initiate enforcement action that may lead to prosecution in their own right or
through an agency of another authority such as the Police or the MCA.,
By ensuring that a robust, rigorous, independent investigation has been carried out, the SHB as the duty
holder can be assured that their obligations for compliance have been addressed.

Any conclusions from investigations or lessons learned will be included in the minutes together with
measures being taken to prevent a recurrence. If appropriate a more detailed report will be submitted to
the Harbour Board, the Council’s Health and Safety Officer and/or the MAIB, to the chief inspector and
any other appropriate authorities, by the quickest means available.

Where necessary the MCA may undertake a verification visit. These verification visits are usually
arranged following an MAIB investigation into an incident, but could also be triggered by other
indicators of noncompliance.

28
Page 42



Annual Review and Report.

An audit of the Safety Management System will be conducted each year by Nicholsons Risk
Management and an overview of accidents and failures during the year, with recommendations for
addressing shortcomings, will be reported to the Board each year.

Notwithstanding this report, the system will be kept under continuous appraisal and immediate action
taken where shown necessary.

Once every three years, the MCA will ask the duty holder to confirm in writing if SHB is complying with the
Port marine Safety Code.

6. RECORD AND PUBLISH

Records

The Harbour is careful to maintain due diligence records. This Safety Management System is
itself clear evidence of care and commitment. The risk assessments provide considerable further
examples of how the safety policy has been put into practice.

Publication of Plans and Reports

To demonstrate SHB’s commitment to maritime safety and ensure the involvement of harbour users, the
safety plan for marine operations shall be published every year at an SHB meeting open to the press and
the public.

The plan shall illustrate how the policies and procedures will be developed to satisfy the requirements under the
Code. It shall commit the authority to undertake and regulate marine operations in a way that safeguards the
harbour, its users, the public and the environment. It shall refer to commercial activities in the harbour; the
efficient provision of specified services and the effective regulation of vessels. It shall also explain how
commercial pressures would be managed without undermining the safe provision of services and the efficient
discharge of its duties.

The SHB, as duty holder, will also publish an assessment of the harbour authority’s performance against the
plan. Information gathered from the monitoring and auditing of the marine safety management system, shall be
used to support the analysis and conclusions.

29
Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1c

AGENDA AGENDA
ITEM ITEM
10 SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 10

NAME OF COMMITTEE Salcombe Harbour Board

DATE 3 February 2014

REPORT TITLE REVIEW of BYELAWS ENFORCEMENT
POLICY

REPORT OF Salcombe Harbour Master

WARDS AFFECTED All South Hams

Summary of report:
To review the enforcement policy for Harbour byelaws.
Financial implications:
There are no direct financial implications from this report. The DfT have indicated that
there will be no charge for their conference of the powers of Harbour Directions as ports
will be dealt with in batches.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Harbour Board RESOLVES to:
1. Recommend the adoption of the Enforcement Policy at Appendix C
to this report.
2. Recommend that Salcombe Harbour Authority apply to the DfT for
the power to give harbour directions under sections 40A-0D of the
Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Marine navigation Act 2013.

Officer contact:

lan Gibson — 01548 843791 (Internal 7104)

Page 45



BACKGROUND

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

Salcombe Harbour Authority is a statutory harbour authority and has a
duty to regulate navigation within its harbour. They also have a power to
make byelaws to provide an enforceable legal framework that can be used
to assist in regulation.

Byelaws provide general rules for navigation and the conduct of a vessel

within the jurisdiction of a Harbour Authority. In addition to these powers,

The Harbour Master is able to give special directions to vessels within his
area of authority in respect of when and how they may enter the harbour

and where and how they may moor.

The Harbour Authority published their latest edition of the Enforcement
Policy in April 2013 (SH 62/12); this report instigates a review of that

policy.

The Marine Navigation Act 2013, Appendix A, made provision in relation
to marine navigation and harbours and provides Salcombe Harbour
Authority with the opportunity to apply for the powers to make Harbour
Directions.

The lead time to introduce a Harbour Direction would be months rather
than years and within the control of the Harbour Authority and the Port
User Group rather than the Department for Transport. This change has
been supported by the British Ports Association (BPA) and the United
Kingdom Harbour Masters Association (UKHMA); however it was not so
well received by the Royal Yachting Association (RYA). Consequently
there have been long discussions resulting in supplementary guidance, a
Code of Conduct on Harbour Directions, Appendix B.

Harbour Directions may complement or to some extent replace harbour
byelaws.

The DfT have requested expressions of interest from ports interested in
being designated with the powers to make harbour directions by 30 April
2014.

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

21

It is recommended that the Harbour Board review the Enforcement Policy
and re-issue it, draft at Appendix C

Page 46



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

As part of the annual review of the Enforcement Policy the Byelaws should
be reviewed. As a byelaw change could take several years, it is proposed
that this review is conducted over the next 12 months in tandem with an
application to the DfT for the powers to make Harbour Directions.

In preparation for an application for the powers to make Harbour
Directions, the Harbour Authority consults with the Harbour Community
Forums with a view of establishing a Port User Group (PUG), with
membership from each of the pre-established Harbour Community
Forums.

Harbour Directions may be used by a designated harbour authority to
regulate ships within their harbour, or entering or leaving their harbour.
They may relate to movement, mooring and unmooring, equipment and
manning of ships. They are therefore unlikely to completely replace
byelaws.

Potential Harbour Directions could include the following issues identified in
the annual review of the Harbour’'s Risk Assessments:

« The Racing Dinghy Free Fairway to vessel traffic movements
during race starts.

« Windsurfing in main fairway during July and August.

« Cruising yachts of 7m and larger sailing between the Salcombe
Harbour Hotel and the Saltstone in July and August.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Salcombe Harbour Authority is the statutory body, and is South Hams
District Council. The Salcombe Harbour Board is the Board of 10, which is
a committee of Council. The Board is the Duty Holder for the Harbour
Authority.

The Harbour Board is responsible for making and enforcing policies for the
regulation and safe conduct of Salcombe Harbour. It is right and proper to
review the policies for conducting enforcement from time to time in the
light of experience and prevailing circumstances.

The appended enforcement policy has been updated and accords with
current legal requirements including the Human Rights Act.

A review of byelaws will be required to determine if any statutory provision
of local application will be need to be amended or repealed.

Page 47



4, FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no direct financial implications from this report.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1

The risk management implications are:

Risk/Opportunity

Risk Status

Impact/
Severity

Likelihood/
Probability

Risk Score

Mitigating and Management
Actions

Without a clear and published
enforcement policy, harbour
users will not be clear of the
implications of not complying
with Harbour Byelaws

Regular review of and
consistent Enforcement of the
published policy.

Harbour Byelaws will not be
enforced in a consistent way.

By having a clear enforcement
policy both harbour staff and
harbour users will be in no
doubt regarding the policy for
the enforcement of the
Harbour Byelaws.

The Enforcement Policy gives
a framework and guidance to
both offices and harbour users
on the enforcement of byelaws
and the consequences of non
compliance.

Byelaws become out of date
and do not address the
current problems within the
Harbour

Byelaws reviewed annually.
The minor changes currently
outstanding are manageable in
the short term with the most
expedient way of making any
changes being the introduction
of the Marine Navigation Bill
2012-13. Byelaw changes are
extremely difficult to progress
through the DfT and could take
up to 2 years. The power of
Harbour Directions offers a
complementary power to aid
port management.

Page 48




6.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Corporate priorities
engaged:

Community Life
Economy
Environment

Statutory powers:

The Pier and Harbour Order (Salcombe)
Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).

Considerations of
equality and human
rights:

A person accused of contravening civil or criminal
law has the right to a fair hearing, to have their
views considered before action is taken, and, if it
comes to it, to a fair trial. They are also entitled to
be treated without unlawful discrimination of any
kind. The enforcement policy has been drafted
with these requirements in mind.

Biodiversity None
considerations:
Sustainability None

considerations:

Crime and disorder
implications:

The Enforcement Policy gives clear guidance on
the enforcement of Harbour byelaws

Background papers:

Salcombe Harbour Byelaws

Enforcement Policy dated April 2013 (SH 62/12)
2013 Port Marine Safety Code Audit

Harbour Risk Assessments and safety
management System, reviewed November 2013.

Appendices
attached:

A. Marine Navigation act 2013.

B. NDP Supplementary Guidance: Code of
Conduct on Harbour Directions.

C. Salcombe Harbour Enforcement Policy dated 3
February 2014.

Page 49




This page is intentionally left blank



Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Marine Navigation Act 2013
2013 CHAPTER 23

An Act to make provision in relation to marine navigation and
harbours. [25th April 2013]

BE IT ENACTED by the Queen’s most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of
the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this present Parliament assembled, and by
the authority of the same, as follows:—

Pilotage

1 Power to remove harbour authorities’ pilotage functions

(1) In section 1 of the Pilotage Act 1987 (meaning of “competent harbour authority”) after
subsection (4) insert—

“(4A) A harbour authority in England or Wales is not a competent harbour authority
for the purposes of this Act while it is specified in an order of the Secretary
of State under this subsection.

(4B) A harbour authority in Scotland is not a competent harbour authority for the
purposes of this Act while it is specified in an order of the Scottish Ministers
under this subsection.”

(2) For subsection (5) of that section (power to revoke or amend where circumstances
change) substitute—

“(5) An order under this section may be amended or revoked by further order.”

(3) In subsection (7) of that section (procedure for certain orders) for “this section”
substitute “subsection (3) or (4)”.

(4) After subsection (8) of that section insert—

“(8AA) Before making an order under subsection (4A) or (4B) the person making the
order must consult—

Page 51



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(a) any harbour authority to which the order would apply, and
(b) anyone else who the person making the order thinks appropriate.

(8B) An order under this section may include transitional, consequential, incidental
or supplemental provision.”

(5) In section 1A(1) (procedure for certain orders: Scotland) after “other than
subsection (4)” insert “or (4B)”.

Pilotage exemption certificates: grant

(1) In section 8(1) of the Pilotage Act 1987 (grant)—
(a) for “the master or first mate” substitute “a deck officer”, and
(b) in paragraph (a) for “master or first mate” substitute “a deck officer”.

(2) In section 8(5)(a) (renewal) for “the master or first mate of a ship” substitute “a deck
officer of a ship”.

(3) In sections 10(3), 15(1)(b) and 20(1)(a) (pilotage charges, compulsory pilotage and
boarding facilities for pilots) for “master or first mate” substitute “deck officer”.

(4) In section 31(1) (interpretation) at the appropriate place insert—
““deck officer”, in relation to a ship, includes the master and first mate;”.

Pilotage exemption certificates: suspension and revocation

(1) After section 8 of the Pilotage Act 1987 insert—

“8A Pilotage exemption certificates: suspension and revocation

(1) A competent harbour authority may by written notice suspend or revoke a
person’s pilotage exemption certificate in the following cases.

(2) Case 1 is where an event has occurred as a result of which the authority is no
longer satisfied of the matters specified in section 8(1)(a).

(3) Case 2 is where the authority thinks that the person has provided false
information to the authority as to any of those matters.

(4) Case 3 is where the authority thinks that the person has been guilty of
professional misconduct while piloting a ship.

(5) Case 4 is where—

(a) pilotage notification was given under section 15(4)(b) in reliance on
the person’s certificate, and

(b) inthe event, the pilotage was carried out by a person who was neither
an authorised pilot nor acting in accordance with a pilotage exemption
certificate.

8B  Section 8A: supplementary

(1) The maximum period for which a pilotage exemption certificate may be
suspended is 28 days.

Page 52



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23) 3
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(2) But if a harbour authority has suspended a person’s certificate and is
considering whether to revoke it, the authority may by written notice extend
the suspension for a single period of up to 28 days.

(3) A suspended certificate may be revoked (on the same or different grounds).

(4) Before revoking a person’s certificate a harbour authority must—

(a) give the person written warning, stating the reasons for the proposed
revocation, and

(b) allow the person a reasonable opportunity to make representations.

(5) A competent harbour authority which has suspended or revoked a certificate
may pay compensation to any person who has suffered, or is likely to suffer,
loss as a result.”

(2) In section 8—
(a) omit subsection (6) (revocation and suspension of certificates), and

(b) in subsection (7) (notice) omit “or suspending or revoking a certificate held
by any person”.

4 Pilotage notification

For section 15(3) of the Pilotage Act 1987 (notification by master navigating ship)
substitute—

“(3) The master of a ship commits an offence if—

(a) the ship is navigated in an area in which a pilotage direction applies
to it, and

(b) the competent harbour authority which gave the direction has not been
given pilotage notification.

(4) Pilotage notification is notification that the ship will be navigated in an area in
which a pilotage direction will apply to it and—

(a) that an authorised pilot is required to pilot the ship, or

(b) that an authorised pilot is not required because the ship will be piloted
by a specified person acting in accordance with a pilotage exemption
certificate.

(5) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (3) is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.”

Harbour authorities

5 Harbour directions

(1) After section 40 of the Harbours Act 1964 insert—

Page 53



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

“Harbour directions

40A Directions

(1) A designated harbour authority may give directions (“harbour directions”) in
respect of ships—

(a) within their harbour, or
(b) entering or leaving their harbour.

(2) A harbour direction may relate to—
(a) the movement of ships;
(b) mooring or unmooring;
(c) equipment (including nature and use);
(d) the manning of ships.

(3) A harbour direction may require the master of a ship to provide information
to a specified person in a specified manner.

(4) “Designated harbour authority” means—

(a) aharbour authority for a fishery harbour in Wales who are designated
by order of the Welsh Ministers,

(b) a harbour authority for any other harbour in England or Wales who
are designated by order of the Secretary of State, and

(c) aharbour authority for a harbour in Scotland who are designated by
order of the Scottish Ministers.

(5) A harbour direction is subject to any direction under section 52 of the
Harbours, Docks and Piers Clauses Act 1847 (directions by harbour master).

(6) A harbour authority may not give a harbour direction which conflicts with an
enactment.

(7) An order designating a harbour authority may amend or repeal any statutory
provision of local application which the person making the order thinks is—

(a) inconsistent with the power to give harbour directions, or
(b) unnecessary as a result of the power.

40B Procedure
(1) Harbour directions must be in writing.

(2) Before giving harbour directions a harbour authority must consult such
representatives of users of the harbour as the authority think appropriate.

(3) A harbour authority must make such arrangements as they think appropriate
for publicising a proposed harbour direction for at least 28 days before it is
given.

(4) A harbour authority must—
(a) make harbour directions available for inspection, and
(b) supply a copy to anyone who requests it.

Page 54



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23) 5
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(5) A harbour authority may charge for the supply of copies.

(6) As soon as is reasonably practicable after giving a harbour direction the
harbour authority must publish a notice in a newspaper specialising in
shipping news—

(a) stating that a harbour direction has been given, and

(b) giving details of the arrangements for the inspection and supply of
copies of harbour directions.

40C Enforcement
(1) The master of a ship must ensure that harbour directions are complied with.
(2) Breach of subsection (1) without reasonable excuse is an offence.

(3) A person guilty of the offence is liable on summary conviction to a fine not
exceeding level 4 on the standard scale.

40D Supplemental

(1) Harbour directions—

(a) may make provision that applies generally or only in relation to
specified circumstances, areas, periods or descriptions of ship, and

(b) may make different provision for different circumstances, areas,
periods or descriptions of ship.

(2) Harbour directions may be varied or revoked by subsequent harbour
directions.

(3) In section 40A—

“mooring” includes casting anchor, and
“unmooring” includes weighing anchor.”

(2) In section 54 (orders and regulations) at the end insert—

“(5) A power of the Secretary of State or Welsh Ministers to make an order under
section 40A is exercisable by statutory instrument.

(6) A statutory instrument containing an order under section 40A—

(a) ifmade by the Secretary of State, is subject to annulment in pursuance
of a resolution of either House of Parliament,

(b) if made by the Welsh Ministers, is subject to annulment in pursuance
of a resolution of the National Assembly for Wales.”

(3) In section 57(1) (interpretation) insert at the appropriate place—

13333

master”, in relation to a ship, means the person who has command or
charge of the ship for the time being;”.

6 Harbour closure orders

(1) After section 17 of the Harbours Act 1964 insert—

Page 55



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

“Harbour closure orders

17A Power to make closure order

(1) The Secretary of State may make an order under this section in respect of a
harbour (a “closure order”)—

(a) on the application of the harbour authority,
(b) with the consent of the harbour authority, or

(c) if the Secretary of State has consulted the harbour authority and is
satisfied that they are unlikely to object.

(2) The Secretary of State must publish guidance about the circumstances in
which a closure order will be made. The guidance—
(a) must require the Secretary of State to have regard to the underlying
purpose, and
(b) must be reviewed and (if appropriate) revised from time to time.

(3) In this section—

(a) “the underlying purpose” means the purpose of permitting or
requiring harbour authorities to cease to maintain harbours which are
no longer commercially viable or necessary;

(b) “the harbour authority” in relation to a harbour means any harbour
authority which has statutory duties to manage, maintain or improve
the harbour.

17B Content of closure order

(1) A closure order must relieve the harbour authority of—
(a) all statutory functions in respect of the harbour, or
(b) specified statutory functions in respect of the harbour.

(2) A closure order may transfer specified functions of the harbour authority to a
specified body (with the body’s consent).

(3) A closure order must include transitional provision about the cessation of the
harbour authority’s functions (including provision about rights and liabilities
in relation to the performance of functions before the closure order takes
effect).

(4) A closure order may—
(a) permit or require the harbour authority to carry out works in respect
of the harbour;
(b) permit the Secretary of State to carry out works in respect of the
harbour;
(c) require a harbour authority to pay for works carried out under
paragraph (b);
(d) confer on the harbour authority or the Secretary of State power to
acquire (whether by agreement or compulsorily) land described in the
order as the site of works to be carried out under paragraph (a) or (b).

Page 56



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23) 7
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

17C Harbour closure orders: property etc

(1) A closure order may include provision for the transfer of property, rights and
liabilities of the harbour authority.

(2) In particular, a closure order may include provision—

(a) transferring things that would otherwise not be capable of being
transferred;

(b) creating interests, rights or liabilities in relation to things transferred
or in connection with a transfer;

(¢c) for enforcement of rights or liabilities (whether transferred or created
by the order);

(d) about the transfer of rights and liabilities in relation to employment
(including provision for deemed continuity);

(e) about pension schemes (including provision for amending schemes,
winding them up, transferring their administration, and saving rights
existing before a transfer takes effect);

(f) terminating appointments;
(g) for compensation for loss of employment (or office).

(3) A closure order may include provision—
(a) extinguishing liabilities to the Secretary of State;
(b) about the winding up of the harbour authority’s affairs;

(c) about the winding up of any company wholly owned by the harbour
authority;

(d) about the dissolution of the harbour authority.

(4) A provision of a closure order transferring property, rights or liabilities may—

(a) make the transfer subject to a condition (such as the grant of an
interest in favour of a third party), and

(b) include provision about the effect of failure to comply with the
condition.

(5) Provision under this section may confer a function on the Secretary of State.

17D Harbour closure orders: procedure

(1) Part 1 of Schedule 3 has effect in relation to closure orders as in relation to
harbour revision orders.

(2) In relation to closure orders made otherwise than on the application of
the harbour authority Part 1 of Schedule 3 has effect with any necessary
modifications, in particular—

(a) ignore paragraphs 3,5,6,7,9, 13 and 14,
(b) treat a reference to the applicant as a reference to the Secretary of
State,

(c) treat a reference to the application for an order as a reference to the
proposal to make an order,

(d) treat a reference to being notified of a proposed application as a
reference to proposing to make an order, and

Page 57



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(e) paragraph 8 applies if the Secretary of State decides that the order
would relate to a project which falls within Annex I or II to the
Directive and is a relevant project, in which case—

(1) the Secretary of State must prepare the environmental
statement, having consulted bodies with environmental
responsibilities, and

(i1) the statement must include the information specified in sub-
paragraph (2) (and may include other information).

(3) Section 44 applies in relation to closure orders as in relation to harbour
revision orders.

17E  Harbour closure orders: devolution

(1) In relation to fishery harbours in Wales—
(a) the power to make closure orders vests in the Welsh Ministers, and

(b) areference in this group of sections to the Secretary of State is to be
treated as a reference to the Welsh Ministers.

(2) In relation to harbours in Scotland—
(a) the power to make closure orders vests in the Scottish Ministers,

(b) areference in this group of sections to the Secretary of State is to be
treated as a reference to the Scottish Ministers, and

(c) the reference in section 17D(1) to Schedule 3 is a reference to that
Schedule as it has effect in relation to Scotland.

17F Supplemental

(1) A closure order may include incidental, consequential, transitional or saving
provisions.

(2) In particular, a closure order—
(a) may amend, repeal or revoke an enactment of local application, and
(b) may disapply or modify the application of any other enactment.

(3) A closure order—
(a) may make provision generally or only for specified purposes, and
(b) may make different provision for different purposes.”

(2) At the end of section 44 (limitation of right to challenge orders) insert—
“(9) Section 17D(3) applies this section to closure orders.”

(3) In section 57(1) (interpretation) insert at the appropriate place—
““closure order” has the meaning given by section 17A;”.

Port constables

Port constables: extension of jurisdiction in England and Wales

(1) A port constable may, for policing purposes connected with the port constable’s police
area, act outside that area.

Page 58



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23) 9
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(2) A port constable may act under subsection (1) only with the consent of the chief officer
of police for the police area in which the port constable is acting.

(3) Consent—

(a) may be given in relation to a particular port constable or any description of
port constables;

(b) may be given generally for all policing purposes connected with the port
constable’s police area or may be limited (whether as to particular purposes,
particular occasions or in any other way);

(c) may be given subject to conditions.

(4) When acting under subsection (1) a port constable has all the powers and privileges
of a constable.

(5) “Port constable” means—

(a) a person appointed by virtue of provision incorporating section 79 of the
Harbours, Docks, and Piers Clauses Act 1847,

(b) a person appointed under provision made by virtue of paragraph 8 of
Schedule 2 to the Harbours Act 1964, or

(c) a person appointed under section 154 of the Port of London Act 1968
(c. xxxii).

(6) A port constable’s police area is the area in which the port constable has jurisdiction
to act, ignoring—
(a) subsection (1), and

(b) any provision, made by or under an enactment, under which the port constable
has jurisdiction to act in an area for limited purposes only.

(7) “Policing purposes connected with the port constable’s police area” means any of the

following—
(a) the prevention of the commission of offences in the port constable’s police
area;

(b) the detection or investigation of offences committed in the port constable’s
police area;

(c) the apprehension or prosecution of offenders in respect of offences committed
in the port constable’s police area;

(d) the preservation of the peace in the port constable’s police area;

(e) the apprehension of offenders within the port constable’s police area in respect
of offences committed outside that area and the transport of them to police
stations outside that area;

(f) the regulation of traffic in the port constable’s police area.

(8) Nothing in this section limits the circumstances in which a port constable may act
apart from this section.

General lighthouse authorities

8 General lighthouse authority areas

(1) In section 193 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 (general lighthouse authorities etc)
at the end insert—

Page 59


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukla/1968/32
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukla/1968/32

10 Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

“(6) In subsection (1) references to the seas include seas in an area specified by
virtue of section 129(2)(b).”

(2) In section 255C (locating and marking wrecks)—

(a) atthe end of subsection (4) insert “(and for this purpose a general lighthouse
authority has the powers conferred by section 253 throughout their area)”;

(b) omit subsection (5).

(3) In section 255F (removal in default) omit subsection (4).

9 General lighthouse authorities: commercial activities

(1) After section 197 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 insert—

“197A General lighthouse authorities: commercial activities

(1) A general lighthouse authority may enter into agreements—
(a) for the use by others of assets of the authority (“hire agreements”);

(b) for the provision of consultancy or other services by the authority
(“service agreements”).

(2) But an authority may enter into a hire or service agreement only if—

(a) they are satisfied that it is not likely to prejudice the discharge of their
functions under section 195, and

(b) the Secretary of State consents.

(3) Where an authority enter or seek to enter into hire or service agreements—

(a) expenditure of the authority incurred in connection with the
agreements, and with the Secretary of State’s consent, must be paid
out of the General Lighthouse Fund, and

(b) sums received by the authority under the agreements must be paid
into the General Lighthouse Fund.

(4) The Secretary of State may consent to expenditure in acquiring an asset for the
purpose of entering into hire agreements only if the Secretary of State thinks
that the expenditure is merely preparatory or subsidiary to hire agreements in
respect of other assets (such as in the case of acquiring one asset to be used
with another or to be used in fitting, maintaining or converting another).

(5) An authority must send a copy of any hire or service agreement to the
Secretary of State.

(6) Consent under this section—
(a) may be subject to conditions,
(b) may be general or specific, and
(c) may be prospective or retrospective.”

(2) In section 197 omit subsections (8) to (11) (power to exploit spare capacity).

Page 60



Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23) 11
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Manning requirements and marking wrecks

10 Manning requirements for ships

In section 47 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 (manning requirements) after
subsection (4) insert—

“(4A) Standards of competence or other conditions prescribed or specified by the
Secretary of State under subsection (1)(b) may be expressed by reference to
other documents.

(4B) A reference to a document in reliance on subsection (4A) may include a
reference to amendments of the document which are—

(a) made after the conditions are prescribed or specified, and
(b) approved for the purposes of the regulations by the Secretary of State.”

11 Marking wrecks

(1) In section 252 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 (c. 21) (powers of harbour and
conservancy authorities in relation to wrecks) in subsection (2)(b) for “light or buoy”
substitute “mark the location of”.

(2) After subsection (3) of that section insert—

“(3A) For the purposes of subsection (2)(b) a location may be marked by—
(a) buoys, lights or other physical devices;
(b) the transmission of information about the location.”

General

12 Extent

(1) An amendment or repeal made by this Act has the same extent as the enactment to
which it relates.

(2) Section 7 extends to England and Wales only.

13 Commencement

(1) Sections 1 to 11 come into force on such day or days as the Secretary of State may by
order made by statutory instrument appoint, subject to subsections (2) and (3).

(2) Sections 5 and 6 come into force in relation to fishery harbours in Wales on such day
or days as the Welsh Ministers may by order made by statutory instrument appoint.

(3) Sections 1 to 6 come into force in Scotland on such day or days as the Scottish
Ministers may by order appoint.

(4) An order under this section—
(a) may make provision generally or only for specified purposes,
(b) may make different provision for different purposes, and
(c¢) may include incidental or transitional provision (including savings).

Page 61


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/1995/21

12 Marine Navigation Act 2013 (c. 23)
Document Generated: 2013-05-21
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

14 Short title
This Act may be cited as the Marine Navigation Act 2013.

Page 62



NATIONAL DIRECTIONS PANEL

SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE:

CODE OF CONDUCT
ON HARBOUR DIRECTIONS

UUUUUUUUU

November 2013 Page 63


http://www.ukmajorports.org.uk/

NATIONAL DIRECTIONS PANEL

SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE: CODE OF CONDUCT ON HARBOUR DIRECTIONS

CONTENTS:

© N o ok~ w D PE

Introduction

Obtaining the powers — designation and compliance with the Code of Conduct
The use of harbour directions

Model harbour directions

Procedure for giving harbour directions

Port User Groups and dispute resolution process

Enforcement

Contacts

Appendices:

A.

moo w

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Code of Conduct on Harbour Directions

DfT Advice Note on Designation of Harbour Authorities
Harbours Act 1964, sections 40A-D

Model harbour directions and modern drafting tips
Statements by Mr Stephen Hammond MP and the Earl Attlee

Introduction

Sections 40A-40D of the Harbours Act 1964 were inserted by section 5 of the Marine
S 1
Navigation Act 2013".

In response to questions raised by members of both Houses of Parliament in relation to
appropriate safeguards for the exercise of the powers to be conferred by the 2013 Act, the
Government made clear in Parliament during the passage of the Bill that it would expect any
harbour authority seeking to take advantage of the powers to agree to abide by a code of
conduct as agreed by industry representatives. Extracts from the debates in both Houses of
Parliament are set out in Appendix E.

The Code of Conduct on Harbour Directions (the Code)2 was agreed by industry and user
representative organisations and “sets out procedures in connection with the granting of the
power to make Harbour Directions to individual harbour authorities and the way in which
those Directions might be formulated and handled.”

The Code is not legally binding but its use is strongly recommended as a way of ensuring that
the powers conferred by the 2013 Act are exercised appropriately after wide and effective
consultation.

! See Appendix C
2 Appendix A

Page 64



15

1.6

1.7

1.8

21

2.2

The Code states that:

“Before making an Order designating a Harbour Authority as having Harbour Direction
powers, the Harbour Authority will provide an assurance that it will abide by the Code

to the Secretary of State (or Welsh or Scottish Ministers). »

The Code also created a new National Directions Panel (NDP), comprising industry and user
representative organisations. The NDP comprises the British Ports Association, the UK Major
Ports Group, the UK Chamber of Shipping, the Royal Yachting Association, the British
Tugowners Association and the National Federation of Fishermen’s Organisations and
includes observers from the DfT/Devolved Administrations

The Code provides that:

“The NDP will act as a focal point for issues arising from the granting and use of
Harbour Direction powers. Although it will not have the power to intervene in harbour
operations or in individual dispute resolution procedures, it will oversee and make
recommendations on the conduct expected of harbour authorities using the powers.
These recommendations will be highly persuasive, providing guidance both to harbour
authorities and Port User Groups (PUGS).

The NDP will be responsible for the preparation of Model Harbour Directions and any
relevant accompanying guidance. These will be promulgated to all ports using powers
under the Act and all those ports will be expected to factor them into their decision
making. The NDP should keep under review what other guidance it might offer. &

This non-statutory guidance has therefore been prepared by the NDP in accordance with the
above provisions of the Code and sets out the NDP’s guidance on the application of the
Code.

Obtaining the powers — designation and compliance with the Code of Conduct
A harbour authority may only exercise the power to give harbour directions under sections

40A-40D of the Harbours Act 1964 once it has been designated in an Order made by the
relevant ministers, who are:

€)) Welsh Ministers in the case of a fishery harbour in Wales;

(b) the Secretary of State for Transport in the case of other harbours in England or
Wales; and

(©) Scottish Ministers in the case of a harbour in Scotland.

A harbour authority must apply to the relevant minister to be designated. The Department for
Transport has published an Advice Note on how to make an application to be designated,
which is available at www.gov.uk/government/publications/harbour-directions and a copy of
which is attached as Appendix B. The Scottish Government has produced its own Advice
Note along similar lines for ports in Scotland.

3 Appendix A, paragraph 4
4 Appendix A, paragraphs 6 & 7

Page 65


http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/harbour-directions

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Code provides that:

“Before making an Order designating a Harbour Authority as having Harbour Direction
powers, the Harbour Authority will provide an assurance that it will abide by the Code
to the Secretary of State (or Welsh or Scottish Ministers:)."5

The use of harbour directions

Harbour directions can be given by a designated harbour authority to ships:

€) within their harbour,

(b) entering or leaving their harbour,

Harbour directions may relate to:

@) the movement of ships;
(b) mooring or unmooring (including casting and weighing anchor);
(©) equipment (including nature and use);

(d) the manning of ships.

To all intents and purposes, the power to give harbour directions under the Act, where it is
applicable, constitutes an alternative to making byelaws (though byelaw-making powers in
any given case may have a wider ambit in that they might, for example, extend to on-shore
activities). In particular, the master of a ship:

(a) must ensure that such directions applicable to the ship are complied with; and
(b) commits a criminal offence for failing to do so without reasonable excuse.

Harbour directions made under sections 40A-40D of the Harbours Act 1964 are in the nature
of general directions. General directions are, as their name implies, of general application
and, as such, are to be contrasted with special directions given from time to time by an
authorised harbour master to individual vessels as occasion requires (most harbour masters
have such powers by virtue of their harbour authority’s local legislation).

Unlike special directions, harbour directions may be given in relation to specified
circumstances, areas, periods or descriptions of ship.

Harbour directions may be limited to a particular period or periods of time and therefore may
be seasonal (i.e. they apply for the same period of time each year) or purely temporary (i.e.
short term, with an in-built expiry date) e.g. to cater for a particular event in the harbour.
Where purely temporary directions are considered, the harbour authority will need to bear in
mind that the requisite prior consultation arrangements still apply and sufficient time must be
allowed in advance for this. Imposing an expiry date on a direction may also be appropriate if
the “cooling off” option is to be pursued as part of a dispute resolution process in the case of a
proposed harbour direction which has been the subject of objections This possibility is dealt

° Appendix A, paragraph 4

Page 66



3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

with in more detail below under the ‘Port Users Group and Dispute Resolution Process’
heading of this guidance.

As indicated above, harbour directions must relate to “ships” and so cannot be made in
relation to other subject matter. In this context, “ship” includes every description of vessel
used in navigation, seaplanes on the surface of the water and hovercraft within the meaning
of the Hovercraft Act 1968 (see section 57 of the Harbours Act 1964). The meaning of the
expression “vessel used in navigation” has been considered in a number of legal cases over
many years. In the 2006 case of R v. Goodwin, the Court of Appeal expressed the view that
"vessel used in navigation" means a vessel that is used to make ordered progression over the
water from one place to another.

Examples of vessels that have been found not to be used in navigation in particular
circumstances include personal watercraft, mobile platforms and static hulks. The Railways
and Transport Safety Act 2003 contains a power enabling the Secretary of State to modify or
extend the definition of “ship” for the purposes of the Harbours Act 1964 but to date this
power has not been exercised.

Model harbour directions

As required by the Codee, the NDP has produced a number of model harbour directions that, as
the Code makes clear, harbour authorities will be expected to factor into their decision-making.
The NDP encourages harbour authorities to utilise the text of these model directions as
appropriate when drafting their harbour directions.

These model harbour directions are attached as Appendix D.

Designated harbour authorities should keep in mind that harbour directions create criminal
offences, and that they need to be prepared to prosecute breaches at the Magistrates’ Court.
Therefore harbour authorities must ensure that harbour directions are clear and
unambiguous, that they are appropriately framed and targeted to be effective and achieve
their objectives without unnecessary or inappropriate adverse impacts and that it is clear who
is responsible for complying with the harbour direction. Harbour users should be able to easily
understand what is permitted and what is not permitted within the harbour so harbour
directions should use simple language, with definitions of the terms used in the harbour
directions. The model harbour directions set out in Appendix D are not exhaustive. Where a
harbour authority is contemplating making harbour directions that go beyond the NDP’s
published model directions, it is recommended that those harbour directions follow a similar
style and format to the model directions.

It should also be borne in mind when making harbour directions that these may duplicate the
harbour authority’s existing byelaws. Unless the designation Order has provided for their
revocation, the harbour authority must make a new set of byelaws that revokes earlier
byelaws either fully or partially. It is recommended that existing byelaws and general
directions should be reviewed by harbour authorities at the same time as making
harbour directions.

6 Appendix A, paragraph 7

Page 67



51

5.2

5.3

54

55

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Procedure for giving harbour directions

Harbour directions are given by the harbour authority rather than by its officers (i.e. it is a
main board function). Once given, they are for the harbour master to enforce as directed by
the harbour authority.

As with the introduction of any new regulation, the harbour authority should establish to its
satisfaction that the proposed harbour direction is necessary, the most appropriate means of
addressing the issue in question and is proportionate in its effect.

The contravention of a harbour direction constitutes a criminal offence with all the implications
which that entails. These include, for the harbour authority, the formal process of cautioning,
preparation of case and prosecution where the direction needs to be enforced through the
courts and, for the master of the vessel, potential criminal liability, possible exposure to civil
liability in consequence (by virtue of acting illegally) and the fine and consequential
reputational loss which will follow if convicted. The introduction of harbour directions should
therefore normally only follow consideration of alternatives (including, for example, the use of
information and guidance) and an assessment of the direct and indirect effects of the direction
on harbour users. Depending on the circumstances, that may require a detailed formal
impact assessment.

In some cases, temporary harbour directions rather than permanent ones may be
appropriate. In such cases, the direction should be expressed to have effect for no longer
than is appropriate.

It is important to consult harbour users, when considering the introduction of harbour
directions, on the form that these may take. This should ensure that directions are
appropriately framed and targeted to be effective and achieve their objectives without
unnecessary or inappropriate adverse impacts.

To be effective, consultation needs to provide sufficient details of the background to the
proposals, what the directions are intended to address, what if any alternatives have been
considered and the form of the directions and their anticipated impact on harbour users to
allow consultees to make an informed response. Consultation may need to include more than
one stage.

If it is decided following advance consultation with harbour users that only harbour directions
will deliver the outcome sought, then the statutory process for making harbour directions
(section 40B of the 1964 Act) requires the harbour authority to consult representatives of port
users on the proposed harbour directions and to publish the proposed directions for public
consultation for at least 28 days.

It is recommended that consultation with port users should begin as early as possible, allow
an appropriate period for response, and culminate in the harbour authority giving due
consideration to the responses received. Involvement of the local PUG in this will be a key
element and is dealt with later in this Guidance.

Harbour authorities are encouraged to have regard to government guidance on best practice
in relation to consultation. Current government guidance on consultation can be found here:

Page 68



5.10

511

5.12

6.1

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/60937/Consulta
tion-Principles.pdf

Once the statutory consultation is complete, a harbour authority will need to consider the
responses received and then in light of them decide whether to make the proposed harbour
directions, with or without modification, and the reasons for its decision. If it is concluded that
the proposed harbour directions should be significantly modified, then port users should again
be formally consulted. Whether modifications are significant is a matter for objective judgment
and involves weighing up whether or not they materially alter the nature or effect of the
direction in a manner that is likely to materially affect a harbour user.

If a harbour authority decides to give harbour directions which have been consulted on, it
must then:

€)] make the harbour directions available for inspection;

(b) supply a copy to anyone who requests one (which it may make a reasonable charge
for, if it chooses to do so, to reflect the cost of providing that copy);

(©) publish a notice in a newspaper specialising in shipping news stating that the direction
has been given and giving details of the arrangements for the inspection and supply
of copies of the direction.

As failure to comply with harbour directions may constitute a criminal offence, it is strongly
recommended that in addition to the above harbour authorities publish harbour directions on
their websites for ease of access.

Port User Groups and the Dispute Resolution Process
The Code includes the following provisions in relation to PUGs:

“Any Harbour Authority using Harbour Direction powers under the Act should set up a
PUG; this must include representatives of harbour users as extensively as possible,
including NDP members as appropriate, but in a way which keeps the PUG to a
manageable size. In many cases such a user group already exists, in which case, it
would be appropriate for that group to take on the duties of a PUG bearing in mind its
role as set out in this Code.

A PUG should be able to (1) appoint its Chairman and secretariat from amongst its
members; (2) adopt its own rules of procedure; (3) agree its own agenda for meetings;
and (4) determine the frequency of its meetings. The Harbour Authority should provide
a venue for meetings of the PUG and be represented at its meetings but the Harbour
Authority should not be a member of the PUG.

Although the representatives on the PUG would have a remit from those they represent
and a responsibility to protect their interests, members of the PUG also have a
responsibility to understand and protect the overall interests of the harbour.

PUGs will have an opportunity to consider proposed Harbour Directions at least 14
days before the formal 28 day consultation period. PUGs will play a particularly

Page 69


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/60937/Consultation-Principles.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/60937/Consultation-Principles.pdf

6.2

6.3

6.4

important role in the event of unresolved objections. They will have a responsibility to
seek to achieve resolution at a local level whenever possible.”

If a harbour authority already has a user group which can fulfil the role of the PUG but it does
not meet the full requirements of the Code, it is recommended that the group is adapted to do
so.

The Code also includes a process for resolving disputes in relation to proposed harbour
directions. The Code provides that the dispute resolution procedure is:

a) Proposed Harbour Direction (HD) published for public consultation and at least
28 days given for responses.
b) If objection(s), these to be subject to discussion between the Harbour Authority

(HA) and objector(s) to share views and explore whether, for example, the
intended objective of the HD can be met in other ways.

c) If objection(s) unresolved, referral to the local Port Users Group (PUG).
d) PUG to use its best endeavours to resolve objection(s) on alocal basis.
e) If there is no resolution within a reasonable time, the PUG might consider the

use of a “cooling off” period, its length to be decided by the PUG, during which
time the Harbour Direction is implemented and then reviewed.

f) If this is not an acceptable approach to the PUG or to an objector and no other
means of reaching a resolution is identified, the objection(s) will be resolved by
referral to an independent person to be agreed between the Harbour Authority
and the PUG/objector (as appropriate) or, failing agreement, appointed by the
NDP on request. The independent person will invite the views of the parties and
produce a report of his conclusions, which will be made available to all parties.
This should be considered a last resort, and every effort should be made to find
alocal resolution.

a) The Harbour Authority will, in the light of the PUG’s discussions and the views
of the independent person, decide whether to exercise the power to give or
amend the disputed Harbour Direction. Once it has so decided, the Harbour
Authority must give notice in writing to the PUG and the objector of its decision
and of the reasons for that decision. If the Harbour Authority decides to make a
significant amendment to a Harbour Direction then it should be treated as being
a new direction and consulted on accordingly.

h) The process is then concluded.”

Harbour authorities are likely to find that their PUG can usefully act as a consultative forum for
harbour issues generally but it also has a specific role in relation to harbour directions under
the Act:-

€) to consider proposed harbour directions;

(b) to consider and use its best endeavours to resolve any unresolved objections (ie
objections made to the proposals which after discussion between the harbour
authority and the objector, are not withdrawn by the objector);

(©) to recommend the adoption in appropriate cases (ie where it and the objector or
objectors consider this an acceptable way forward) of a “cooling off” period which

Page 70



6.5

(d)

(e)

should be specified during which time the general harbour direction is implemented
and then reviewed;

where neither a “cooling off” period nor other means of reaching a resolution is
identified by the PUG, to agree with the harbour authority who is to be the
independent person to whom the objection or objections are referred; and

to receive and take account of the decision of a harbour authority to make a harbour
direction.

It will be for each PUG in relation to an objection to judge how best to seek to resolve it but is
recommended that PUGs consider the following:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

V)

)

(h)

@

it should bear in mind that what it is seeking to achieve or facilitate is agreement
between the parties or, if that is not practicable, at least a narrowing and refinement of
the issues in dispute;

it can provide a useful forum to enable the harbour authority and objectors better to
understand their respective positions, the evidential basis for these and any
weaknesses in them;

it may choose to invite written communications but equally may proceed simply by
meeting with the parties jointly or separately;

it should not be influenced by any imbalance in the respective resources of the parties
and their ability to argue their case but rather should seek to ensure that arguments
on each side are sufficiently explored and receive the consideration they deserve;

members of the PUG may and should participate in proceedings notwithstanding that
they or a body whom they represent has an interest in the matter but they should
make it clear when they have such an interest;

it will not be responsible for making any determination itself but rather is in a similar
position to that of a mediator and must leave any final determination to the harbour
authority;

whilst not making a determination itself, it should provide a clear recommendation to
the parties at the conclusion of its consideration and in a manner that enables the
parties to agree the way forward or, if the dispute cannot be resolved, to refer it to an
independent person;

it should bear in mind that the “cooling off” option (which needs to be consensual) is
only likely to be acceptable to the objectors if the length of the implementation period
prior to review is no longer than is necessary to provide a practical test of the
implications of the direction and if the review process is carefully defined so that the
process is clear and time limited,;

the “cooling off” option review process is therefore likely to need to include the
opportunity for each party to make its views known to the other on the implementation
by a specified date, for that to be followed by a specified period for the PUG to seek
to resolve any outstanding objection and, should the direction remain objected to, for

Page 71



6.6

6.7

7.1

7.2

the direction to be time limited or suspended by a specified date unless otherwise
agreed pending completion of referral, if needed, to an independent person and final
determination by the harbour authority as to whether to retain, drop or amend the
direction;

0] such a suspension or time limit could be achieved by the harbour authority
implementing the direction subject to the qualification “except for such periods as the
harbour authority may specify” or “Until [specified date]” and then giving an
undertaking to suspend if necessary. Since harbour directions, once made, can only
be varied or revoked by subsequent harbour directions, the alternative of reaching
agreement as to potential revocation would mean implementing the whole direction-
making procedure again just to achieve that.

The appointment of the independent person in accordance with the Code will need to cover
the terms of the referral, including the procedure for making representations, the programme
for this and payment of the independent person’s fees and expenses. The independent
person might, but not necessarily, be a member of the London Maritime Arbitrators
Association or another professionally qualified arbitrator. Whilst different arrangements may
be appropriate for different cases, it is recommended for general purposes that the
arrangements should provide for a fixed programme for making written representations, that
either party or the independent person should be able to call for an oral hearing for the parties
to respond to the independent person’s questions, that the whole process should ordinarily be
configured to be completed within 3-6 months inclusive of the submission by the independent
person’s report to the parties. The arrangement should also provide for the apportionment of
the costs of the independent person and for the payment of the parties’ own costs, which
might be that the parties each bear their own costs and share equally the costs of the
independent person.

Once the harbour authority receives the independent person’s report, it will be for the harbour
authority to reach a final determination on whether or not to make the harbour direction in
issue, with or without modifications. In doing so, it will need to have proper regard to the
independent person’s report and any other material circumstances and then reach a reasoned
decision which it should publish. As with any decision by a public authority, a harbour
authority’s decision will be open to legal challenge by any party on grounds of irrationality, if
the proper processes have not been followed or if the directions are otherwise unlawful.
However, as long as the decision reached is a reasonable one for the harbour authority to
reach in all the circumstances and the dispute resolution process has been followed
effectively, the risk of such a challenge should be low.

Enforcement

Contravention of a harbour direction is a criminal offence that, on summary conviction before
the Magistrates’ Court, may result in a fine not exceeding level 4 (currently set at £2,500).

As with other possible offences, investigation of possible offences including interviewing of
persons involved must be undertaken in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence
Act 1984 (PACE) Codes of Practice:

https://www.gov.uk/police-and-criminal-evidence-act-1984-pace-codes-of-practice

Page 72


https://www.gov.uk/police-and-criminal-evidence-act-1984-pace-codes-of-practice

7.3 In deciding whether to prosecute, the Harbour Authority will need to satisfy itself beyond
reasonable doubt that an offence has been committed and that there is sufficient evidence to
convict. It will also need to consider whether prosecution is proportionate and in the public
interest. Relevant public interest considerations include whether the offending has been
intentional, reckless or grossly negligent, the degree of harm caused, any previous history of
offending, whether there has been repeated or protracted contravention of the harbour
direction and whether the offender has been uncooperative or obstructive.

7.4 Detailed guidance on the principles to be taken into account will be found in the Code for
Crown Prosecutors issued by the Crown Prosecution Service:

http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code for crown prosecutors/

8. Contacts
8.1 Any queries or comments on this guidance can be addressed to:

Chairman, National Directions Panel
C/o UK Chamber of Shipping

30 Park Street

London

SE1 9EQ

ndp@ukchamberofshipping.com

November 2013

Page 73


http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code_for_crown_prosecutors/
mailto:ndp@ukchamberofshipping.com

APPENDIX A

CODE OF CONDUCT ON HARBOUR DIRECTIONS

1. This Code arises out of the Marine Navigation Act 2013 (‘the Act’) and sets out procedures in
connection with the granting of the power to make Harbour Directions to individual harbour authorities
and the way in which those Directions might be formulated and handled.

2. The Code also covers the setting up of a National Directions Panel (NDP) which will oversee the
use of Harbour Directions.

3. The Code is only applicable to those Harbour Directions made under powers granted under the
Act, although harbour authorities with existing Powers of General Direction may wish to make use of it
in exercising these powers.

4. Before making an Order designating a Harbour Authority as having Harbour Direction powers, the
Harbour Authority will provide an assurance that it will abide by the Code to the Secretary of State (or
Welsh or Scottish Ministers).

Section A — National Directions Panel (NDP)

5. The NDP will, as a minimum, consist of representatives from the British Ports Association, the UK
Major Ports Group, the UK Chamber of Shipping, the Royal Yachting Association and the relevant
fisheries organisations. The NDP will keep its membership under continual review to ensure that it is
fit for purpose and properly reflective of those likely to be affected by Harbour Directions. It is
important that the NDP is of a manageable size. A Chair of and the secretariat for the NDP will be
drawn from the members. It will be expected to meet once a year, or more if the circumstances arise.

6. The NDP will act as a focal point for issues arising from the granting and use of Harbour Direction
powers. Although it will not have the power to intervene in harbour operations or in individual dispute
resolution procedures, it will oversee and make recommendations on the conduct expected of harbour
authorities using the powers. These recommendations will be highly persuasive, providing guidance
both to harbour authorities and Port User Groups (PUGS).

7. The NDP will be responsible for the preparation of Model Harbour Directions and any relevant
accompanying guidance. These will be promulgated to all ports using powers under the Act and all
those ports will be expected to factor them into their decision making. The NDP should keep under
review what other guidance it might offer.

8. The NDP will keep the procedure for dispute resolution under review. (See Section C)
Section B — Port User Group (PUG)

9. Any Harbour Authority using Harbour Direction powers under the Act should set up a PUG,; this
must include representatives of harbour users as extensively as possible, including NDP members as
appropriate, but in a way which keeps the PUG to a manageable size. In many cases such a user
group already exists, in which case, it would be appropriate for that group to take on the duties of a
PUG bearing in mind its role as set out in this Code.

Page.74



10. A PUG should be able to (1) appoint its Chairman and secretariat from amongst its members; (2)
adopt its own rules of procedure; (3) agree its own agenda for meetings; and (4) determine the
frequency of its meetings. The Harbour Authority should provide a venue for meetings of the PUG and
be represented at its meetings but the Harbour Authority should not be a member of the PUG.

11. Although the representatives on the PUG would have a remit from those they represent and a
responsibility to protect their interests, members of the PUG also have a responsibility to understand
and protect the overall interests of the harbour.

12. PUGs will have an opportunity to consider proposed Harbour Directions at least 14 days before
the formal 28 day consultation period. PUGs will play a particularly important role in the event of
unresolved objections. They will have a responsibility to seek to achieve resolution at a local level
whenever possible.

13. Issues arising out of an individual PUG which may be of national interest should be communicated
to the NDP for the benefit of the NDP and other PUGs.

Section C - Dispute Resolution Procedure
14. The procedure is:-

a) Proposed Harbour Direction (HD) published for public consultation and at least 28 days given for
responses.

b) If objection(s), these to be subject to discussion between the Harbour Authority (HA) and
objector(s) to share views and explore whether, for example, the intended objective of the HD can be
met in other ways.

c) If objection(s) unresolved, referral to the local Port Users Group (PUG).
d) PUG to use its best endeavours to resolve objection(s) on a local basis.

e) If there is no resolution within a reasonable time, the PUG might consider the use of a “cooling off’
period, its length to be decided by the PUG, during which time the Harbour Direction is implemented
and then reviewed.

f) If this is not an acceptable approach to the PUG or to an objector and no other means of reaching a
resolution is identified, the objection(s) will be resolved by referral to an independent person to be
agreed between the Harbour Authority and the PUG/objector (as appropriate) or, failing agreement,
appointed by the NDP on request. The independent person will invite the views of the parties and
produce a report of his conclusions, which will be made available to all parties. This should be
considered a last resort, and every effort should be made to find a local resolution.

g) The Harbour Authority will, in the light of the PUG’s discussions and the views of the independent
person, decide whether to exercise the power to give or amend the disputed Harbour Direction. Once
it has so decided, the Harbour Authority must give notice in writing to the PUG and the objector of its
decision and of the reasons for that decision. If the Harbour Authority decides to make a significant
amendment to a Harbour Direction then it should be treated as being a new direction and consulted
on accordingly.

h) The process is then concluded.

Page 75



APPENDIX B

DfT ADVICE NOTE ON DESIGNATION

Executive Summary

Harbour authorities are responsible for managing and running safe and efficient harbours. They
have particular responsibilities in relation to the safety of vessels and people within the harbour,
efficient navigation and the protection of the port environment.

The Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC)’ recommends harbour authorities to review and be
aware of their existing powers to ensure they are still relevant to the safe operation of a
harbour. It recommends that additional powers should be sought by a harbour authority, if a risk
assessment concludes that this would be advisable. This may include securing powers of
general directions to support the effective management of vessels within the harbour, if a
harbour authority does not already have them.

As a result of the Marine Navigation Act 2013, harbour authorities may now, on application, be
designated with the power to make harbour directions. This power may be sought as a
response to the review of powers recommended by the PMSC.

The process to designate harbour authorities requires a statutory instrument (the ‘designation
Order’) to be made by the Secretary of State. The Department is seeking applications for a first
round of harbour authorities to be issued with these powers in a designation Order, which is
expected to be made in late 2014. This advice note provides guidance on how to apply.

To promote the effective use of harbour direction powers, the national representatives of
harbour authorities and harbour users have formed a National Directions Panel (NDP).
Interested harbour authorities are advised to refer to the guidance produced by the NDP, in
particular the non-statutory Code of Conduct on harbour directions®. The Government expects
any harbour authority seeking the power to make harbour directions to commit to complying
with this Code of Conduct.

How to apply to the Department

6.

Expressions of interest to be designated with the powers to make harbour directions should be
submitted to the Department by e-mail to Ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk, which is the relevant authority
for harbour authorities in England and non-fishery ports in Wales.

Fishery ports in Wales should apply to the Welsh Assembly Government at
fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk.

" www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment _data/file/38728/port-marine-safety-

code.pdf
8 www.britishports.org.uk/navigational-safety;

www.rya.org.uk/go/currentaffairs;

www.ukchamberofshipping.com/information/publications-and-briefings;

www.ukmajorports.org.uk/pages/latest-news

Pages:76


mailto:Ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/38728/port-marine-safety-code.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/38728/port-marine-safety-code.pdf
http://www.britishports.org.uk/navigational-safety
http://www.rya.org.uk/go/currentaffairs
http://www.ukchamberofshipping.com/information/publications-and-briefings/
http://www.ukmajorports.org.uk/pages/latest-news

8. To take part in the first round of harbour authorities to be issued with these powers, please
submit your expression of interest no later than 30 April 2014.

9. A draft form that can be used to give assurance that the harbour authority has signed up to the
code is attached at Annex A. A covering letter including contact details and the information
requested at paragraph xx of this note should also be provided.

10. If a harbour authority is unable to sign up to the Code of Conduct, the reasons for this should be
explained fully in the covering letter. All applications to be designated with the powers to make
harbour directions will be assessed on a case by case basis.

11. This advice note applies to England and all ports in Wales as agreed by the Welsh
Government. Transport Scotland will be publishing their own guidance and ports in Scotland
should refer to this.

1 Harbour Directions

What are they?

1.1 The Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Marine Navigation Act 2013, provides a
mechanism by which the Secretary of State may by Order designate harbour authorities with a
power to make harbour directions to better regulate shipping and improve safety within their
harbour area. Such harbour authorities are called “designated harbour authorities”. (new
sections 40A to 40D of the Harbours Act 1964, inserted by section 5 of the marine Navigation
Act 2013).

What are they used for?

1.2 Harbour directions may be used by a designated harbour authority to regulate ships within their
harbour, or entering or leaving their harbour. They may relate to the movement, mooring and
unmooring, equipment and manning of ships. For example directions could be used:

a. toregulate the use of any main navigation channel or fairway;
b. to prescribe where and how vessels are to moor and move within the harbour;

c. to ensure ships above a certain size have working radios to allow communication between
harbour master and ship;

d. to specify requirements for no deficiency in machinery; and,
e. to ensure sufficient people with relevant experience crew specific types of ship.

Who will they apply to?

1.3 Harbour directions will only apply to ships as defined in the Harbours Act 1964. This Act defines
a ship as including every description of vessel used in navigation, seaplanes and hovercraft.
The Court of Appeal has held that to be used in navigation, a vessel must be used to make
ordered progression from one place to another.

Page 77



Why apply for Harbour Directions?

1.4

15

1.6

Harbour authorities are responsible for managing and running safe and efficient harbours. They
have particular responsibilities in relation to the safety of vessels and people within the harbour,
efficient navigation and the protection of the port environment.

To meet these responsibilities effectively, harbour authorities have currently up to four powers
available under their local legislation which they may use in regulating their harbour areas:

o Byelaws — power to issue byelaws which, subject to confirmation by the Secretary of
State for Transport. Byelaws may apply to harbour land as well as the water;

. Special directions — power to issue directions in relation to individual ships in the
harbour area for a specified purpose;

. General directions — power to issue directions in relation to all ships in the harbour
area either in response to a particular occurrence or as a standing instruction to all
ships or specified classes of ship;

. Pilotage directions — (applies to ‘competent harbour authorities’ only) power to direct
that it is compulsory for a ship to be subject to pilotage — i.e. under the charge of
either an authorised pilot or a master or first mate holding a pilotage exemption
certificate

If designated, a harbour authority will have an additional power:

. Harbour directions - power to issue directions in relation to ships in the harbour area,
or entering or leaving the harbour.

Since its first publication in 2000, the Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) has recommended that
additional powers should be sought by a harbour authority, if a risk assessment concluded that
it would be well advised to secure additional powers to support effective management of
vessels in their harbour waters. Obtaining the powers to give harbour directions may meet
such a recommendation

National Directions Panel

1.7

1.8

1.9

An industry-led National Directions Panel (NDP) has been set up to provide guidance on the
operational use of harbour directions, to issue draft model directions and to act as a focal point
on any issues arising from the granting of harbour directions. The NDP will also keep under
review the non-statutory Code of Conduct on the use of harbour directions that was previously
agreed by organisations.

The NDP is chaired by the UK Chamber of Shipping and includes representatives of the British
Ports Association, the UK Major Ports Group, the Royal Yachting Association, the British
TugOwners Association and the National Federation of Fishermen’'s Organisation. The
Department for Transport and devolved administrations attend meetings as observers.

The Government expects any harbour authority applying for designation to have agreed to sign
up to this Code before it is designated with the power of harbour directions.

Pages78



1.10

1.11

1.12

The NDP has produced non-statutory supplementary guidance on how to use these powers,
both the Code of Conduct and the non-statutory supplementary guidance can be found on the

following websites:

www.britishports.org.uk/navigational-safety;

www.rya.org.uk/go/currentaffairs;

www.ukchamberofshipping.com/information/publications-and-briefings;

www.ukmajorports.org.uk/pages/latest-news.

This guidance includes a set of model directions, intended to assist designated harbour
authorities to draft their harbour directions. This is not exhaustive and has been produced in
agreement with the various trade associations and provides examples that are likely to be
accepted to most harbour users.

Enquiries about the NDP, the Code of Conduct, model directions and other advice published by
the NDP should be directed to the NDP Chairman, c/o UK Chamber of Shipping:
ndp@ukchamberofshipping.com.

2 Application for designation

How to apply

2.1  Harbour authorities in England and non-fishery ports in Wales seeking to be designated with
powers of harbour direction should apply to the Department for Transport at
ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk.

2.2 Fishery ports in Wales should apply to the Welsh Assembly Government at
fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk.

2.3 The Department intends to make Orders that designate a number of harbour authorities with
the powers at the same time. It is not feasible for the Department to make an Order on an ad
hoc basis for individual harbour authorities. Therefore we intend to:

a) invite applications to be part of a first round by June 2014;
b) invite applications/expressions of interest for a second round,;
c) thereafter review and, if necessary, make a designation Order on a three-yearly cycle.

2.4  Applications will be assessed on a case by case basis. The designation Order will be drafted
and consulted on. All views expressed by those with an interest on the suitability of the harbour
authority to be designated with the powers to make harbour directions will be considered.

2.5 The application (no more than 6 pages) should provide:

a. A rationale covering why the power to make harbour directions is needed (paragraph 2.6);

b. Details of any proposal for amending or repealing any statutory provision of local application
which would be inconsistent with the power to give harbour directions or unnecessary, if
that power is conferred; and/or (as appropriate) a statement of intention for amending

Page 79


http://www.britishports.org.uk/navigational-safety
http://www.rya.org.uk/go/currentaffairs
http://www.ukchamberofshipping.com/information/publications-and-briefings/
http://www.ukmajorports.org.uk/pages/latest-news
mailto:ndp@ukchamberofshipping.com
mailto:ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk

and/or revoking any existing byelaws or directions that might otherwise conflict with harbour
directions (paragraph 2.8);

c. The views of harbour users with respect to the suitability of that particular harbour authority

applying to the Department to be designated in the Order, if they have been sought already
or, if not, a statement of when and how they will be consulted (paragraph 2.10); and

d. Code of Conduct statement — either an assurance that the harbour authority has signed up

to the Code of Conduct or a full explanation of why it is unable to do so (paragraph 2.13).

Rationale

2.6

2.7

Explain why the power to make harbour directions is needed so that the Department
understands why they are needed. For example, reasons might include:

= arisk analysis has identified a need for an authority to seek harbour directions;

= to assist the harbour in meeting recommendations of the Port Marine Safety Code and
Guide to Good Practice.

= to deal with specific incidents and/or accidents;

= anincrease in traffic;

= recommendations in a Marine Accident Investigation Branch report; or

= harbour users have requested the powers to protect various activities in the port.

This is not an exhaustive list of possible reasons why harbour directions are required.

Amendments/repeal to statutory provisions

2.8

2.9

Explain if any statutory provision of local application will need to be amended or repealed and
how and when this will be done.

A designation Order may amend or repeal any statutory provision of local application, which the
person making the order thinks is inconsistent with the power to give harbour directions or is
unnecessary as a result of such power. Statutory provisions enabling byelaws or general
directions to be made, and any byelaws or general directions made under them, may be
inconsistent or unnecessary once the power to make harbour directions is available to the
harbour authority. However, if it is thought that the existing powers may still be needed but that
particular byelaw or general directions made under them need to be amended or repealed, the
harbour authority may prefer simply to provide a statement of its intent to amend or revoke
them. Amending or revoking byelaws requires confirmation by the Secretary of State, but is
expected to be simpler than applying for new byelaws. However, it is unlikely that it would be
appropriate to amend or revoke existing byelaws through the designation Order itself. The
designation Order would need to specify the date when the byelaws were revoked and it is
possible that the process to made harbour directions would not be completed before the
byelaws were revoked or amended.

Pager80



Consultation

2.10 Explain whether the views of harbour users and other interested parties have been sought on:
a) suitability of harbour authority to be designated with the power to make harbour directions.
b) an indication of what the harbour directions will cover.

2.11 A short summary of views expressed should also be submitted so that the Department is aware
if there are any local problems that may be raised when it consults on the order.

2.12 If at the time of applying to the Department harbour users have not yet been consulted, a short
explanation of the reason should be provided along with the harbour authority’s plan on when
and how it will consult.

Code of Conduct Statement

2.13 An assurance that the harbour authority has signed up to the Code of Conduct or a full
explanation of why it is unable to do so. Annex A provides a form of words that could be used
in an application to give assurance that the harbour authority has signed up to the Code.

Timescale

2.14 Before a designation Order is made the Department will consult on it. The consultation will give
the opportunity for those with an interest to express their views (including whether a harbour
authority should be included or removed from the designation Order). The ultimate decision on
whether or not a harbour authority should have the status of a ‘designated harbour authority’
rests with the Department for Transport, which will consider responses to the consultation.

2.15 Annex B sets out approximate timescales; this is for illustrative purposes only and is dependent
on resources and volume of applications submitted. In consultation with the National Directions
Panel a deadline of six months for initial applications was considered suitable.

Review

2.16 We will keep each designation Order under review to ensure it is fit for purpose and relevant. If
there is a need, any amendments would usually be made on the three-yearly cycle. Harbour
authorities are encouraged to liaise with the Department for Transport about their designation.

3 Making Harbour Directions

3.1 Section 40B of the Harbours Act 1964 sets out the procedure that designated harbour
authorities must follow before making harbour directions. The Act specifies that:

e all directions must be set out in writing;
e a harbour authority must consult such representatives of the users of the harbour;

e a harbour authority must publicise a proposed harbour direction for at least 28 days before
it is given; and,

Page 81



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

51

5.2

5.3

54

e a harbour authority must make harbour directions available for inspection, and supply a
copy to anyone who requests it; as soon as reasonably practicable after giving a harbour
direction the harbour authority must publish a notice in a newspaper specialising in shipping
news, stating that a direction has been given, and giving details of the arrangements for the
inspection and supply of copies of harbour directions.

In order to publicise harbour directions the Department recommends harbour authorities
publish harbour directions on their websites. While this is not a statutory requirement, it is good
practice to do so.

The Department recognises that each harbour authorities is unique and considers that each
harbour authority, in consultation with port users, is best placed to make decisions on which
harbour directions would be appropriate for its harbour, based on local circumstances.

Harbour directions create criminal offences, and designated harbour authorities need to be
prepared to prosecute breaches at the Magistrates’ Court. Therefore harbour authorities must
ensure that harbour directions are clear and unambiguous and that it is clear who is
responsible for complying with the harbour direction. Harbour users should be able to easily
understand what is permitted and what is not permitted within the harbour. Therefore harbour
directions should use simple language, with definitions of the terms used in the harbour
directions. Further Guidance is available from the NDP.

Devolution

Ports legislation is a devolved matter. The Secretary of State in England will assess
applications for ports in England and non-fishery ports in Wales.

In the case of a fishery harbour in Wales the harbour authority should liaise with the Welsh
Government.

In the case of a harbour in Scotland they should contact the Scottish Government.
Contacts

Enquiries about this guidance or making an application should be sent to ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk.

Enquiries about the NDP, the Code of Conduct, model directions and other advice published by
the NDP should be directed to The NDP Chairman, c/o UK Chamber of Shipping:
ndp@chamberofshipping.com.

Enquiries about fishery ports in Wales and applications should be sent to
fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk.

Enquiries about the guidance produced by Transport Scotland should be addressed to Val
Ferguson and any applications from ports in Scotland sent to
Harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk.

Page.82


mailto:ports@dft.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:ndp@chamberofshipping.com
mailto:fisheriesmailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:Harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Annex A — Assurance template

| confirm that the following resolutions of the [specify name of Harbour Authority] were duly passed at
a meeting of the [specify harbour authority] on xxxx.

The harbour authority has had regard to the content of and agrees to comply with the code of conduct
on harbour directions, in particular:

a) to maintain a Port User Group and to apply a dispute resolution procedure such as is
set out in the code of conduct when required; and,

b) to have regard to supplementary guidance issued from time to time by the National
Directions Panel on the subject of harbour directions.

The [Chief Executive] is authorised to apply to [Welsh Minister/ the Secretary of State for Transport/
Scottish Ministers] for [specify harbour authority] to be designated as a designated harbour authority
for the purposes of section 40A of the Harbour Act 1964.

Name
XXXXXXXX
Signed
XXXXXXX
Date

XXXXXXX

Annex B - Proposed timetable for Year 1

DfT Guidance published — Nov 2013
Deadline for e-applications — 30 April 2014

Review of applications by the Department — May/June 2014 (largely dependent on volume of
applications.)

Public consultation on the Designation Order — (allowing time for the Order to be drafted) —
September 2014

Make the Order — winter 2014

Page 83



APPENDIX C
HARBOURS ACT 1964, SECTIONS 40A-D
Harbour directions
40A Directions
(1) A designated harbour authority may give directions (“harbour directions”) in respect of ships—

(a) within their harbour, or
(b) entering or leaving their harbour.

(2) A harbour direction may relate to—

€) the movement of ships;

(b) mooring or unmoaoring;

(© equipment (including nature and use);
(d) the manning of ships.

(3) A harbour direction may require the master of a ship to provide information to a specified person in
a specified manner.

(4) “Designated harbour authority” means—

€) a harbour authority for a fishery harbour in Wales who are designated by order of the
Welsh Ministers,

(b) a harbour authority for any other harbour in England or Wales who are designated by
order of the Secretary of State, and

(© a harbour authority for a harbour in Scotland who are designated by order of the
Scottish Ministers.

(5) A harbour direction is subject to any direction under section 52 of the Harbours, Docks and Piers
Clauses Act 1847 (directions by harbour master).

(6) A harbour authority may not give a harbour direction which conflicts with an enactment.

(7) An order designating a harbour authority may amend or repeal any statutory provision of local
application which the person making the order thinks is—

€) inconsistent with the power to give harbour directions, or
(b) unnecessary as a result of the power.

40B Procedure
(1) Harbour directions must be in writing.

(2) Before giving harbour directions a harbour authority must consult such representatives of users of
the harbour as the authority think appropriate.

(3) A harbour authority must make such arrangements as they think appropriate for publicising a
proposed harbour direction for at least 28 days before it is given.

(4) A harbour authority must—

(a) make harbour directions available for inspection, and

Page.84



(b) supply a copy to anyone who requests it.
(5) A harbour authority may charge for the supply of copies.

(6) As soon as is reasonably practicable after giving a harbour direction the harbour authority must
publish a notice in a newspaper specialising in shipping news—

(a) stating that a harbour direction has been given, and
(b) giving details of the arrangements for the inspection and supply of copies of harbour
directions.

40C Enforcement
(1) The master of a ship must ensure that harbour directions are complied with.
(2) Breach of subsection (1) without reasonable excuse is an offence.

(3) A person guilty of the offence is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4 on
the standard scale.

40D Supplemental

(1) Harbour directions—

€) may make provision that applies generally or only in relation to specified
circumstances, areas, periods or descriptions of ship, and
(b) may make different provision for different circumstances, areas, periods or

descriptions of ship.
(2) Harbour directions may be varied or revoked by subsequent harbour directions.
(3) In section 40A—

¢ “mooring” includes casting anchor, and
e “unmooring” includes weighing anchor.”

Consequential Amendments to the Harbours Act 1964:
In section 54 (orders and regulations) at the end insert—

“(5) A power of the Secretary of State or Welsh Ministers to make an order under section 40A is
exercisable by statutory instrument.

(6) A statutory instrument containing an order under section 40A—

€) if made by the Secretary of State, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution
of either House of Parliament,
(b) if made by the Welsh Ministers, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of

the National Assembly for Wales.”
In section 57(1) (interpretation) insert at the appropriate place—

1113

. master”, in relation to a ship, means the person who has command or charge of
the ship for the time being;”.

Page 85



Note

APPENDIX D

MODEL HARBOUR DIRECTIONS

Section 40C of the Harbours Act 1964 provides that:
(1) The master of a ship must ensure that Harbour Directions are complied with;
(2) Breach of subsection (1) without reasonable excuse is an offence;
(3) A person guilty of the offence is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4

on the standard scale.

Model Definitions:

In these Directions the following words and expressions have the following meanings:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.
Xii.
Xiil.
Xiv.

XV.
XVi.

“Collision Regulations” — means the International Regulations for Preventing Collisions at
Sea 1972, as amended from time to time;

“Commercial Ship” — means any Ship which is not a Recreational Craft;

“Fairway” — means the navigable channel which is the regular course or track of Ships as
shown on the relevant Admiralty chart and by the navigation marks and buoys;

“Grounded” — means, in relation to a Ship, having made involuntary contact with the ground,
except for touching briefly so that no damage is caused,;

“Harbour” — The limits of the harbour within which the Harbour Authority has jurisdiction;
“Harbour Authority” — means [insert port name], in which are invested under an Act of
Parliament, or an order or other instrument made under such an Act, powers or duties of
improving, maintaining or managing a harbour;

“Harbour Master” — means any person appointed as such by the Harbour Authority, and
his/her deputies and assistants, and any other person or employee of the Harbour for the time
being authorised to act, either generally or for a specific purpose, in the capacity of Harbour
Master,

“MARPOL” — means the International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships;
“Master” — when used in connection with a Ship means any individual having command or
charge of the Ship;

“Mean High Water Mark” — means the level of mean high water spring tides;

“Mooring” — includes any quay, buoy, pile, post, chain, pillar, pontoon or like apparatus or
convenience provided by the Harbour Authority for the mooring of Ships;

“Powerboat” — means a Recreational Craft which is powered by an engine with a rated
power output of in excess of [15kW];

“Recreational Craft” — means a Ship [of less than 24m in length] which, regardless of its
means of propulsion, is intended for sports or leisure purposes;

“Ship” — includes every description of vessel used in navigation, seaplanes on the surface of
the water and hovercraft within the meaning of the Hovercraft Act 1968.

“SOLAS” — means the International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea;

“Underway” — when used in relation to a Ship means not at anchor, or made fast to the
shore, or aground.

Model Harbour Directions

1.

Collision Regulations
The Collision Regulations must be complied with at all times by any Ship within the Harbour.

Speed Limit

a) Every Ship navigating within the [specify area] of the Harbour [or within [insert figure]
metres of Mean High Water Mark] must, unless otherwise authorised by the Harbour

Pages86



b)

c)

d)

Master in writing, be navigated at a speed not exceeding [insert figure] knots through
the water.

Direction 2a) does not apply to a Ship on any occasion when it is being used by the
Police, Fire Service or RNLI or to any other safety, rescue or patrol craft in an
emergency situation, or for the purposes of enforcing any applicable direction or
byelaw.

Direction 2a) does not apply to a Ship that is only able to maintain adequate steerage
way and control by navigating at a speed in excess of the limit specified in Direction
2a).

A Ship must be navigated at all times with due care and attention and in such a
manner so as not to endanger the safety of, or cause nuisance to, any other vessel,
person or property.

A Ship must not be navigated or manoeuvred in any part of the [insert specific
description/area (optional)] Harbour or within [insert figure] metres of the shore in a
manner or at a speed so as to cause wash to be generated that may endanger the
safety of, or cause damage to, any other vessel, person or property.

Navigating under influence of alcohol or drugs
A person must not navigate or attempt to navigate a Ship while their ability to do so is
impaired because of drink or drugs.

Reporting Collisions and Sunk or Grounded Ships

a)

b)

The Master of any Commercial Ship involved in any collision and the Master of any
Recreational Craft involved in a collision in which significant damage or personal
injury is suffered must as soon as possible and in any event within 24 hours report the
collision to the Harbour Master.

The Master of a Commercial Ship which has sunk or grounded in the Harbour must
immediately advise the Harbour Master of its position and any other particulars that
may be required for the safety of navigation. If a Commercial Ship under tow has sunk
or grounded the Master of the towing Ship is subject to the same duty to advise the
Harbour Master.

The Master of a Recreational Craft which has sunk in the Harbour, and the Master of
a Recreational Craft that has grounded in the Harbour such that the grounding has
resulted in significant damage or a threat to its watertight integrity, must as soon as
possible advise the Harbour Master of its position and any other particulars that may
be required for the safety of navigation.

Unseaworthy Ship

A person must not navigate a Ship in an unsafe or unseaworthy condition within the Harbour
except as necessary for that Ship’s safety and that of its crew. If a Ship has a defect that
threatens the safety of its crew or other Harbour users or inhibits its ability to navigate safely
the Master must notify the Harbour Master immediately.

Manning by competent persons

a)

b)

c)

Any Ship underway in the Harbour must be under the control or direct supervision of a
competent person.

When conditions require or in any event when reasonably required by the Harbour
Master, a Ship must have at least one competent person on board at all times whilst
the Ship is anchored or moored in the Harbour.

A person under the age of [16] years must not be the Master of a Powerboat within
the Harbour unless they hold an appropriate RYA qualification (or equivalent) or have
permission from the Harbour Master.

Page 87



10.

11.

12.

13.

Lights impeding safe navigation

Except in the interests of safe and proper navigation, lights, including lasers or other beams,
must not be used on a Ship in a manner which causes nuisance to other vessels or impedes
safe navigation.

Mooring and anchoring

a) A Ship must not use any Mooring in the Harbour without permission from the Harbour
Master. The use of any such Mooring must be in compliance with the conditions
attached to the permission issued by the Harbour Master or displayed in the Harbour
Master’s office.

b) A Commercial Ship on entering the Harbour must, if directed by the Harbour Master,
proceed to the Mooring directed by the Harbour Master. A Commercial Ship so
directed must not be moved to a different Mooring without the express permission of
the Harbour Master.

C) A Ship moored or anchored within the Harbour must be properly and effectively
moored or anchored, so that it is not only secure but also not liable to cause any
damage to any other vessel or property.

d) Except in the case of an emergency, a Ship must not be anchored in the Fairway,
within any areas used for small craft moorings or where it is likely to obstruct
navigation.

Obstruction of Aids to Navigation

A Ship must not obstruct, be made fast to or otherwise interfere with any aid to navigation,
including a light, beacon, sea mark, navigation buoy or mark, racing buoy or tide pole within
the Harbour.

Obstruction of public landings

A person must not use a Ship or its equipment or permit a Ship or its equipment to be used in
a manner that obstructs any public landing place, hard, pier, jetty or slipway within the
Harbour.

Fishing within harbour areas

A Ship must not be used to drift, trawl, pot or undertake any other fishing activity in any part of
the Harbour so as to be or to be likely to become an obstruction or danger to navigation in the
Harbour. Bottom gear must not be used in any fairway or channel or any areas used for small
craft moorings.

Open fires on board a Ship

A person must not light an open fire on any Ship within the Harbour, except for cookers or
barbecues designed for use on board a Ship. Such cookers or barbecues must only be used
on board the Ship and must not be transferred to a pontoon or quay.

Discharge of Oil, Sewage and Waste

a) In addition to any of the requirements under MARPOL a person on any Ship must not
use the Ship’s equipment or cause or permit the Ship’s equipment to be used to
discharge into the Harbour any:

i) oil or oily residues; or

ii) sewage, when moored to any Mooring having direct pedestrian access to
shore facilities; or

iii) commercial or domestic waste, plastics, or foodstuffs.

Pages88



14,

15.

16.

17.

b) The Master of a Ship must immediately report to the Harbour Master any discharge of
oil or oily residues from the Ship, however caused. In such circumstances, the Master
must comply with any directions issued to the Master by the Harbour Master.

Notification of Arrival and Departure
Before any Commercial Ship:

i) enters the Harbour; or
i) moves within the Harbour; or
iii) leaves the Harbour,

reasonable notice must be given to the Harbour Master in advance of the intended entering,
moving or leaving.

Navigation in Restricted Visibility
When visibility within the Harbour is less than [one half of a nautical mile]:

i) a Commercial Ship carrying dangerous substances (as defined in the Dangerous
Substances in Harbour Areas Regulations 1987) in bulk; and
i) a Commercial Ship in ballast but not gas-free;

must not enter, leave or move within the Harbour without the permission of the Harbour
Master.

Automatic and Back-up Steering Gear

a) When use is being made of an automatic steering device on a Commercial Ship, a
qualified helmsman must be present on the bridge at all times to steer the Ship
manually should circumstances demand.

b) Any duplicate, secondary or backup steering gear and associated power systems
fitted to a Commercial Ship must be fully operational and ready for immediate use
while that Commercial Ship is navigating within the Harbour.

c) When use is being made of an automatic steering device on a Recreational Craft, a
competent person must be within reach of the steering position at all times to steer
the Ship manually should circumstances demand.

Passage Plans
Before a Ship enters, leaves or moves within the Harbour a voyage plan for the intended
passage must be prepared in accordance with Regulation 34 of Chapter V of SOLAS.

Note: Information for the preparation, updating and execution of voyage plans may be found
in:

* SOLAS Chapter V, Safety of Navigation, Annex 25 — Guidelines for Voyage Planning (IMO
resolution A.893 (2))

* Current [insert port name] Notices to Mariners

[insert Harbour Authority name] HARBOUR DIRECTIONS, [insert date].

Page 89



MODERN DRAFTING TIPS
Reduce the length and complexity of sentences;

Do not use outmoded language such as ‘hereby’, ‘forthwith’ (use ‘as soon as practical’), ‘thereof’,
‘therewith’, ‘hereinafter’, ‘thereto’, (replace with ‘to it’). Also avoid the use of archaic terms for example
phonogram etc;

Do not use initial capital letters for words that are not proper nouns or defined terms in harbour
directions;

Replace ‘shall’ with ‘must’ or ‘shall not’ with ‘must not’ where it is intended to impose an obligation;

Adopt a gender neutral drafting style, for example instead of using ‘he’, ‘his’ etc to ‘he or she’ or ‘his
and her’ and ensure harbour directions comply with equality legislation;

Avoid the passive form, use active verbs;

Ensure consistent terminology is used throughout the harbour directions to avoid ambiguity or
creating uncertainty in those complying with the harbour directions or enforcing them. Synonyms
should be avoided unless intended to mean something different;

Locations referred to in the harbour directions should be ones that those unfamiliar with the locality
can easily locate (for example marked on charts covering the area);

All relevant enabling powers should be specified.

Pager90



APPENDIX E
STATEMENT BY STEPHEN HAMMOND MP

House of Commons, Hansard, 30 November 2012 (columns 542 & 551), on report stage of the
Marine Navigation (No.2) Bill

Column 542:

Peter Bottomley: ...The next question is what the Minister will say about designating harbour
authorities—I do not anticipate that he will be able to speak for the other national authorities other
than those for England, but he could indicate whether others may do the same—and whether he will
bear in mind the commitment to adhere to an agreed code of practice, and that that commitment,
which will not be onerous, and no one is trying to suggest something that would cause more
bureaucracy, will be a factor when considering designation. That is one of the crucial issues on which
the Minister can address the House. [Interruption.] Is he addressing the House now?

Stephen Hammond: | tried, on Second Reading and in Committee, to be as helpful as possible as
early as possible so that there was no cause for confusion. It is my expectation and the expectation of
the Department for Transport that, when applying for a designation, a harbour authority would sign up
to the code of practice.

Column 551:

Stephen Hammond: This has been a passionate debate and | recognise the concerns raised by my
hon. Friends the Members for Worthing West (Sir Peter Bottomley) and for Croydon South (Richard
Ottaway), both of whom spoke passionately and with knowledge. | hope that they accept, as | do, that
the concerns have been raised a number of times and | hope we are moving towards a solution. The
concerns were raised at a meeting with me before the Committee stage of the Bill. | hope that | will be
able to allay some of them by explaining why the Government have chosen the non-statutory
safeguards that complement the statutory provisions in the Bill. | understand that they have been
agreed in principle by industry in its widest sense, by the Department and in principle although not in
detail by the RYA. In total, there are 12 safeguards, some of which are detailed in the Bill. Others are
non-statutory and | want to focus on them.

A set of harbour directions will be made available for harbours to adopt, as will guidance on how to
use the power. A code of conduct covering good practice on consultation and a mechanism to resolve
disputes about harbour directions before they are made will be developed by representatives of the
port and the port users. An independently chaired panel will be established to develop and maintain
the code of conduct and model harbour directions and | have given assurances on Second Reading
and in Committee that the Department will actively engage in ensuring that there are guidelines for
what should be covered in the code of conduct, how the harbour authority should make those
directions and whom they should be consulting.

| expect the code of conduct to be agreed. | want it agreed by all sides—that is, not just by my
Department but by the RYA.

See for the whole debate:

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201213/cmhansrd/cm121130/debindx/121130-x.htm

Page 91


http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201213/cmhansrd/cm121130/debindx/121130-x.htm

STATEMENT BY THE EARL ATTLEE

House of Lords, Hansard, 1 February 2013 (columns 1834-1836), on consideration stage of the
Marine Navigation (No.2) Bill

Earl Attlee: My Lords, | am grateful to the noble and right reverend Lord, Lord Eames, for explaining
the reason behind this amendment. | was terrified that he would not move his amendment because he
observed that there was good news. When a similar amendment was debated in another place, the
Shipping Minister was able to announce an initial agreement between port operators and users to
develop a code of conduct on harbour directions. The intention was that this would provide a
mechanism for resolving disputes. The Shipping Minister said:

"It is my expectation and the expectation of the Department for Transport that, when applying for a
designation, a harbour authority would sign up to the code of practice".-[Official Report, Commons,
30/11/2012; col. 542.]

| am happy to say that since then, there have been very productive meetings between the Royal
Yachting Association, the British Ports Association and the UK Major Ports Group, chaired by the UK
Chamber of Shipping, to develop that code. At their meeting yesterday, agreement was reached on
the terms of that code and | have personally laid a copy in the Library of the House. | was not
prepared to fall into the trap of some noble Lord going into the Library and not finding the code of
practice.

As expected, the code describes the establishment of a National Directions Panel to maintain the
code, produce a set of model harbour directions that designated harbours can adopt as appropriate
for their local circumstances, and consider how the power of the harbour directions is being used. The
code also sets out how harbour directions should be consulted on with harbour users and how
disputes can be resolved. The focus of the code is on resolution locally by the port and its users, but
with the possibility of referral to an independent arbiter if agreement cannot be reached.

| believe that this is an excellent example of the benefits of non-statutory arrangements
complementing legislation. | think that this is the right approach as we seek to reduce bureaucratic
and inflexible central regulation and open up local decision-making. We do not want to gold-plate
legislation, especially as there are already a number of safeguards in the Bill aimed at ensuring that
the power of harbour directions is used responsibly.

In answer to the noble and right reverend Lord, Lord Eames, | repeat the Shipping Minister's
assurance that the Government would expect any harbour authority applying for designation to have
agreed to the code of conduct. | do not anticipate that the code of conduct would be ignored in future
years; furthermore, the designation order would be kept under review and a harbour authority could
be de-designated if that were warranted.

The noble Lord, Lord Berkeley, asked whether the harbour authority would have to be a fit and proper
person. The noble Lord will know that Ministers always take into consideration whether a person is a
fit and proper person. Having said that, | hope that the noble and right reverend Lord, Lord Eames,
will feel able to withdraw his amendment.

See for the whole debate:

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201213/Idhansrd/index/130201.html

Page.92


http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201213/ldhansrd/index/130201.html

SALCOMBE HARBOUR AUTHORITY - ENFORCEMENT POLICY

1.

General Powers

1.1 Salcombe Harbour Authority is a statutory Harbour Authority and has
powers to make byelaws under the Pier and Harbour Order (Salcombe)
Confirmation Act, 1954.

1.2  Contravention of byelaws may result in prosecution through the
Magistrates’ Court.

1.3  The Criminal Justice Act 1982 (as amended) provided for a standard
scale of fines for summary offences. The range of fines applicable to
contraventions of byelaws is: Level 2 or Level 3 (currently £500 and £1,000).

Principles of Enforcement

2.1  The Harbour Authority has statutory powers to regulate the conduct of
vessels in the harbour’s jurisdiction and to assist in managing the risks of
marine operations. To these ends, enforcement action will sometimes be
appropriate.

2.2 The Harbour Authority recognises that most harbour users want to
comply with the law. Therefore, where it can, the Harbour Authority will help
users to meet their legal obligations without unnecessary expense, while
taking firm action — including prosecution where appropriate — against those
who flout the law or act irresponsibly.

2.3  The Harbour Authority will provide information and advice in plain
language on the rules that apply and will disseminate it as widely as possible.
The Harbour Authority will provide encouragement and support to ensure that
their legal powers are used appropriately to improve and safeguard public
health, public safety and the environment.

2.4  The purpose of any enforcement action is to promote the safety of
harbour users.

2.5 Where it appears that the Harbour byelaws may have been
contravened, the Harbour Authority has the options of negotiation, education
and persuasion and, where an offence has occurred, of warning or
prosecuting an offender.

2.6  The Harbour Authority will minimise the costs of compliance for users
by ensuring that any action it takes is proportionate to the risks. As far as the
law allows, the Harbour Authority will take account of the circumstances of the
case and the operator’s attitude when considering action.

2.7  The Harbour Authority will carry out its duties in a fair, equitable and
consistent manner. It will seek to be clear, open and helpful in its approach to
enforcement.

2.8  The Harbour Authority will seek to target enforcement resources where
they are most needed and will be informed by its other policies, aims and
objectives. It will liaise with other authorities and enforcement bodies as
appropriate.

Page 93



ENFORCEMENT ACTION

3.

Enforcement action can take the form of;

= A warning, which will be recorded, given by an authorised member of the
harbour staff should they observe a contravention of the byelaws.

= A written warning explaining the way in which a byelaw has been
contravened and the implications should the offender re-offend. This is
not a caution for the purposes of criminal records.

= Suspension or revocation of a licence issued in accordance with the
byelaws. Mooring licences and contracts are issued annually and require
adherence to the byelaws.

= Prosecution — as an ultimate sanction.

= A combination of any of the above.

Consideration of action

4.1  Prosecution is a serious step and must be regarded as the ultimate
sanction. A prosecution will be initiated only when the alleged conduct has
been such that the Harbour Authority cannot impose an appropriate sanction
itself and the matter therefore requires the attention of the court.

4.2  The Harbour Authority is committed to assisting other enforcement
agencies, including the Police, to pursue their statutory duties. The Harbour
Authority will liaise with any enforcement agency that may also have an

interest in any matter being considered for prosecution.

4.3  When dealing with alleged offences,

Officers will always identify themselves and explain the purpose of their
visit or interview.

Each case will be considered on its individual merits and a prosecution
will only be initiated in accordance with this Policy.

Having duly considered the Harbour Authority’s internal policies due
regard will be given to the Code for Crown Prosecutors.

Any decision to initiate a prosecution will be recorded in writing and the
reasons for initiating the prosecution will be given.

Any investigation carried out by the Harbour Authority will be conducted
pursuant to the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (and/ or any other
relevant legislation) with due regard to the applicable Codes of Practice.
In addition, where applicable, best practice will be observed as set out in
national guidance issued by bodies such as the Department for Transport
(Ports Policy) and/ or Maritime and Coastguard Agency.

4.4  The Harbour Authority recognises that once a prosecution has been
commenced control of the matter is ceded to the courts.

Page 94



ENFORCEMENT FACTORS

5.

In considering the appropriate enforcement action, the Harbour Authority will
take into account the following;

* The seriousness of the complaint.

* The risk of harm to the public and others.

* The public interest.

* The explanation of the offender.

* The attitude of the offender.

* Whether the matter is a recurrence.

 Whether there have been any other contraventions of byelaws or
Legislation by the offender.

* The willingness of the alleged offender to prevent a recurrence of the
incident.

* Any action taken by the offender to mitigate damage/ loss to others

* The availability of witnesses.

* The reliability of witnesses.

* The sufficiency of evidence.

SUSPENSION OR WITHDRAWAL OF MOORING LICENCE

6. If following consideration of these factors the Harbour Master decides that the
mooring licence should be suspended or revoked altogether, he will offer the
licence holder the opportunity to make written representations about that
before making any decision. If after further consideration the Harbour Master
orders suspension or revocation of the licence, then the licence holder may
make a written request for the Chairman of the Harbour Board to review that
decision. The Chairman’s decision will be final.

PROSECUTION

7. Prosecution, as an ultimate sanction will be considered in the following
circumstances where;

* The alleged offence is a flagrant breach of byelaws or legislation such that
public safety or well being is or has been put at risk.

* The alleged offence involves failure to comply with a warning.

» There is a history of similar offences.

* The alleged offence involves risk of damage to the environment.

* There are no other public interest factors indicating that prosecution is not
appropriate.

8. In appropriate cases, the Harbour Authority will seek to recover the costs of

taking enforcement action following a conviction. Any award of costs will be
for the court to determine.

Clir R J Carter
Chairman Salcombe Harbour Board Date: 3 February 2013

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA AGENDA
ITEM ITEM
11 SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 11

Agenda ltem 1d

NAME OF COMMITTEE

Salcombe Harbour Board

DATE 3 February 2014

REPORT TITLE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
REPORT OF Salcombe Harbour Master
WARDS AFFECTED All South Hams

Summary of Report

To report the Harbour’s performance against agreed Performance Indicators (PIs).

RECOMMENDATION

That the Harbour Board RESOLVES to:

Note Harbour Performance against agreed Performance

Indicators.

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Harbour Board endorsed the introduction of a set of PIs and to have
them reported as a standing agenda item (SH 26/06).

2. ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2.1 This report of Harbour Performance Indicators covers the period from 1
October to 31 December 2013. The detailed report against the agreed
performance Indicators with comments for the period is at Appendix A.
Detailed comments below are limited to where targets have not been met
or have exceeded by a considerable margin:

2.1.1 SHA4(L) Major Plant — The Jones Crane developed an oil leak on
the steering ram. The crane was unserviceable for two weeks
whilst the ram seals were replaced. The opportunity was taken to
give the crane a major service whilst it was in the workshop
awaiting the refurbished ram.

2.1.2 SH9(L) Mooring Failures — One Harbour foreshore mooring moved
during the storm on 23/24 December. During the same storm four
boats broke their mooring pick up lines, which had chafed through.

Page 97



2.1.3

214

2.1.5

2.1.6

2.1.7

2.1.8

2.1.9

SH24(L) Minor Collisions — There were three minor collisions
during this quarter, one reported dinghy incident, the other two
were reports of damage, which could not be correlated to an
particular incident.

SH32A(L) Staff Days lost to sickness — There has been a slight
increase in days lost compared to the same quarter last year,
however the overall days lost to sickness is down by 70% from last
year.

SH33(L) Customer Complaints — There was one complaint from a
customer who uses Whitestrand to berth his tender. He
complained that the initiative to cover propellers to prevent damage
was not rigidly enforced. This new initiative was introduced in 2013
and will be more vigorously encouraged in 2014, the information
campaign will include a reminder on the Whitestrand Stickers.

SH 34(L) Income from Visiting yachts — It was a very good summer
in 2013, the weather was kind with sunshine and fair breezes.
However the shoulder months have been extremely disappointing.
The income from visiting yachts during the third quarter was down
by 67% from 2012. However the total income this year is up by
3%, but still well short of 2011 figures.

SH35(L) Visiting Yacht Numbers — Overall the number of visiting
yachts is up over last year, but the third quarter was extremely
disappointing with numbers down from 174 last year to 48 this
year, a drop of 72%.

SH36(L) Visiting Yacht Length of Stay — Although there has been
an increase in visiting yacht numbers overall, they did not linger in
Salcombe. The average length of stay for the third quarter was
down from 1.8 nights last year to 1.3 nights in 2013.

SH37(L) Taxi Passengers Carried — The taxi continues to perform
very well, overall passenger numbers this year are up by 19% and
up by a massive 240% for the third quarter.

2.1.10 SH40(L) Water Quality - Recorded Number of Pollution Incidents —

There have been three incidents this quarter, which represents a
threefold increase over the third quarter of last year, although the
overall number of incidents for the first three quarters has reduced
from 14 to 6. Harbour Board members have been involved in two
events this quarter which had a focus on water quality. The first
was a seminar arranged by the AONB Estuaries Officer involving
the Environment Agency and Natural England, the second was a
public meeting arranged by Salcombe Town Council with South
West Water (SWW). The way ahead would seem now to be to
ensure that SWW deliver on their promise to conduct an initial
examination and that the Harbour Board and Salcombe Town
Council coordinate their lobbying efforts.

Page 98



To assist the Board in deciding how best to pursue the issue of
water quality within the Estuary with SWW the correspondence
between the Chairman of the Harbour Board and the Chairman of
SWW is attached at Appendices 2 to 6. Salcombe Harbour
Authority has achieved improvements in water quality in areas
where it has more direct responsibility, e.g. controlling runoff from
foreshore developments through advice and conditions; hull
washing and scraping system; fishermen’s quay waste
management system.

2.1.11 SH42(L) Litter Pick Events — There have been no litter pick up
events organised during this reporting period.

3. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 Statutory Powers: Local Government Act 1972, Section 151. The Pier
and Harbour Order (Salcombe) Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).

3.2  There are no other legal implications to this report.
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
4.1  There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. This
report highlights performance issues which may have financial
implications at a later date. Should this be the case a separate report will
be brought forward for the Harbour Board’s consideration.

5. Risk Assessment

5.1 The risk management implications are:

Risk/Opportunity Risk Status Mitigating and

ImpaqU Likelihqqd/ Risk Score Management Actions
Severity Probability

The setting and monitoring of The Harbour Board,

realistic Performance Targets through its contact with

will enable the Harbour Board harbour Community

to ensure that statutory Forums and by setting and

obligations are met and that monitoring performance

there is real improvement in standards will be in a

the service offered to users of position to amend the

Salcombe harbour The 3 2 6 Strategic Business Plan

Harbour Authority is not ensuring it remains

delivering a satisfactory relevant and that Harbour

service to harbour users. funds are invested wisely.

Trends and issues can be

identified early and policies

and strategies developed to

address issues.

Page 99




Corporate priorities
engaged:

Consideration of
equality and human
rights:

Biodiversity
considerations:
Sustainability
considerations:
Crime and disorder
implications:
Background Papers:

Appendices attached:

Community Life

Economy

Environment

Equality issues are dealt with in the report under the
discussion of the Mooring Policy.

Harbour Board performance and policies have a bearing
on biodiversity.

The Harbour performance needs to be considered
regularly to ensure current policies are sustainable.

The Report considers reported marine crime within the
Estuary.

Strategic Business Plan 2012 to 2017.

Salcombe Harbour Performance Management Grid.
HB Chairman’s letter to SWW dated Jul 11.
SWW Chairman’s response dated Aug 11.

HB Chairman’s Letter to SWW dated Oct 11.
SWW Chairman’s response dated Nov 11.

HB Chairman’s letter to SWW dated Feb 12.

QA WNE

Page 100



L0l ebed

Appendix 1 to

Performance Management Report

Dated 3 February 2014
SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REP ORT THIRD QUARTER 2013/14

Lead Officer — lan Gibson

ANNUAL TARGET APR/ JuL/ OCT/ JAN/ | CURRENT
ACTIVITY TZ%TS/E FOR QTR = JUNE SEPT DEC MAR STATUS COMMENTS
A visual
check of all
harbour 3
owned and 2013/14 Monthly inspections 3 3 3
maintained

SH1 facilities,

(L) landings, oo e s @

pontoons,

mooring

berths

’ 3 3 3 3

navigational | 2012/13

marks and

beacons.

Investigated
within 24 All
hours, Defect.s not

Defects 2013/14 | repaired Lﬁiﬁ;e? ! ! 0
SH2 rectification within 7 days
L of major days @
(L) harbour ol e

infrastructure

and facilities.

2012/13 0 0 0 1




¢0l abed

ANNUAL TARGET COMMENTS for

APR/ JuL/ OCT/ JAN/ | CURRENT

ACTIVITY YEAR TARGET FOR last reporting
2013/14 QTR JUNE SEPT DEC MAR | STATUS period
Apr to Sep 8
available 4 8 8 4
SH3 Sep to Mar 4 | Available
Launch 2013/14 | gvailable @
(L) |serviceability | | ST | |
2012/13 ! 8 4 3
Available
except for
planned
maintenance,
Major Plant un- | 2013/14 r(ilaift(iaf(i:é?j 0 ! ! !
SH4 | serviceability within 5 Jones crane, leaking
. teeri .
L) | Crane, bare, ® |sengran
Van) ____________________d__a:y_s_'_ _____________________________________________________________________
2012/13 0 0 0 0
Inspected
weekly : . .
) ' 3 3 3 3 Kingsbridge slipway
SH5 Slipways and 2013/14 cleaned is deteriorating
L steps [ ] Monthly | @ rapidly and is
L) Inspected and crumbling so in parts
cleaned cannot be power
3 3 3 3 washed.
2012/13




€0l 8bed

ACTIVITY

YEAR

ANNUAL
TARGET
2013/14

TARGET
FOR
QTR

APR/
JUNE

JuL/
SEPT

JAN/
MAR | STATUS

CURRENT

COMMENTS for
last reporting
period

SH6
(L)

Failure of
navigation
lights and
marks will be
rectified or
Local Notice
to Mariners
issued

2013/14

2012/13

Within 24
hours

SH7
(L)

Patrol of
estuary and
harbour to
ensure no
hazards to
navigation
exist

2013/14

2012/13

SH8
(L)

Inspection and
preventative
maintenance
of Deep water
and Foreshore
Moorings

2013/14

2012/13

100%
Annually

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Deep water mooring
maintenance
completed in
November/December




0l ebed

=

ACTIVITY

ANNUAL
TARGET
2013/14

TARGET
FOR
QTR

APR/
JUNE

JuL/
SEPT

JAN/
MAR

CURRENT
STATUS

COMMENTS for
last reporting
period

Investigat
ed within
24 hours
2013/14 r9p§W9d 1 x Harbour Mooring
within 7 0 0 0 1 moved in a storm on
days 23/24 December.
SH9 Mooring alternative There were 4 bogts
(L) fail facilit broke their mooring
alures y pick up lines, chafed
nwaQe through during the
_____________ available § | | 1 1 pre Christmas
storms.
2012/13 0 2 3 5 0
Re-allocation | 2013/14 Within 4
0 1 0 0
of permanent weeks
SH10 mooring
(L) berths - @
surrendered
to Harbour 2012/13 0 0 0 0
Authority
2013/14
Dail Dail Daily Daily Daily
SH11 Weather y y
L forecasttobe { |  } 1 1 1 @
L) posted at
Whitestrand
2012/13 Daily Daily Daily | Daily




G0} 8bed

=

ACTIVITY

YEAR

ANNUAL
TARGET

2013/14

TARGET
FOR
QTR

JuL/
SEPT

OCT/
DEC

JAN/
MAR

CURRENT
STATUS

COMMENTS for
last reporting
period

2013/14 | 100% e Complia | Annual
) Annual omplian Compliance omptia Inspecti
SH20 Compliance audit ye nce on
L withPort (v @
(L) Marine safety
. Annual | Com
Code 2012/13 Compliance Conrrgglla Inspecti | plian
on ce
Compliance
. 0
with Merchant | 2013/14 A]\-r?r?/ol Complian | Annual | Complia | Complia
Shipping Act A (li’l.a ce Inspection nce nce
SH21 | 1995 Section udit
L 198(1) Trinity |~ ©
House : .| Com
: : Annual Complia | Complia )
inspection of | 2012/13 j plian
|0C8.| aids to Inspectlon nce nce ce
navigation.
2013/14 10%
edeton | g | 0| s |
SH22 H&S Incidents gear
(L) and accidents |---------oeft e e @
(Staff)
2012/13 1 1 0 1




90l 8bed

REF  ACTIVITY TARGET  FoR | APRL UL OCT/ AN CURRENT LT
2013/14 QTR period
2013/14 10%
. reduction . 5 4 0
SH22 | H&S Incidents year on
A and accidents year @
(L) (Public)
2012/13 1 2 0 0
2013/14 5%
. annual >28 11 17 0
SH23 | Speeding reduction
(L) Offences | | V.. @
detected
2012/13 ! 32 0 0
2013/14 5%
annual >1 12 40 3
SLH24 Minor reduction @
(L) Collisions ¢ (| "+ v | 1 1
2012/13 5 16 0 0
2013/14 10%
annual <5 4 6 1
SH30 o reduction
(L) Crimefigures | | v 0 @
2012/13 8 6 6 1




L0} 8bed

ANNUAL TARGET COMMENTS for
= ACTIVITY YEAR TARGET FOR APR/ Jut/ OCT/ JAN/| CURRENT last reporting

2013/14 QTR JUNE SEPT DEC MAR | STATUS period

100% of
2013/14 contracte 100% 100% 100% 100%
SLH31 Night Security | | dpatrols | | | | ®)
L) Patrols
2012/13 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
< 0,
2013/14 - :l?aﬁy 0 0 0 0
SLH32 Permanent |\ | T4 @
(L) Staff Turnover
2012/13 1 0 0 0
< 0,
2013/14 10 ﬁ < 3 0 7
SH32A Staff days Lost to annually
WL Sickness  Jeefrmemee e e ®
Absence
2012/13 23 7 3 0
10% Customer who uses
201314 | annual <3 2 7 1 Whitestrand
SH33 Customer reduction complained that the
(L) C laints |7 ® initiative to cover
omplaints 2012/13 propellers to prevent
0 3 0 9 damage was not
rigidly enforced.




801 abed

ACTIVITY

ANNUAL
TARGET
2013/14

TARGET
FOR
QTR

APR/
JUNE

JuL/
SEPT

OCT/
DEC

JAN/

MAR | STATUS

COMMENTS for
last reporting
period

The income from

0
2013/14 . 5% 5,200 40,278 108,056 1,635 visiting yachts
SH34 Income from Increase during the third
(L) . ms |t quarter was down
visiting yachts 2012/13 by 67%. However
43,736 96,438 4,954 402 the total income this
year is up by 3%.
0
2013714 | o% 184 1423 | 4,299 48
SH35 o ncrease Visiting Yacht
(L) Visiting Yachts |------------{----mmmmmmmmmm o oo numbers down by
72%
2012713 1,407 | 3,191 174 26
Increase
2013/14 | length of 2 18 14 13
SH36 stay to 2
L Visiting Yacht | | nights § | 0 1
L) length of Stay Increase
2012/13 | length of 21 1.69 18 118
stay to
1.5 nights
A massive 240%
o . .
2013/14 . 5% 6.224 16,440 153 increase in the
increase yacht taxi
SH37 YachtTaxi— ...t V. .. 0 passengers carried
in the third quarter.
L) Pas:r?inegders Overall this year
0
2012/13 6,168 12,863 45 190 19% more

passengers have
been carried on the
yacht taxi.




60} 8bed

ANNUAL TARGET COMMENTS for
APR/ JUL/ OCT/ JAN/ | CURRENT .
REF ACTIVITY YEAR TARGET FOR last reporting
2013/14 QTR JUNE SEPT DEC MAR | STATUS period
SH38 Visiting boats | 2013/14 i r?c”rg:z'e 6,512 | 12,488 52
L Harbourdues | | "=~ ¢ | 0 1
(L) collected at
Slipway 2012/13 7,142 | 9,983 0 186
Zero Three Incidents this
. 2013/14 | Pollution 0 1 2 3 quarter, which
Water Quality | | Incidents ¢ | 1 | | represents a
SH40 Recorded threefold increase
(L) number of over last year,
pollution | 2012/13 6 7 1 1 although overall
incidents number of incidents
has reduced from
14 to 6.
Plus 1 cancelled
SH41 2013/14 | 3/Quarter 3 4 6 3+ due to storm, 5
I N I S R R R illustrated
(L) Guided Events presentations & 2
2012/13 4 5 5 3 estuary forum
meetings
2013/14 | Quarterly 1 3 1 0
SI’_H42 Litter Pickup } | v
(L) Events
2012/13 2 2 2 2
SH43 201314 | Annual > 27% 0 0 % o
Recycling of Increase Awaiting figures
L) yachtrefuse | | ammual V1 T oM Jrade Waste
2012/13 0 26.93% 0 0 ’
Increase




This page is intentionally left blank



Please reply to: Cllr John Carter, Chairman Salcombe Harbour Board
Salcombe Harbour Office, Whitestrand, Salcombe, Devon, TQ8 8BU
Direct telephone: 01548 843791  Direct fax: 01548 842033

E-mail: salcombe.harbour@southhams.gov.uk

Mr K Harvey
Chairman South West Water
Peninsular House

Rydon Lane
Exeter Our ref: 1G
EX2 7THR 13 July 2011

Dear Mr Harvey

At our Board meeting on 12 July 2011 we reviewed, within our performance management
scorecard, the number of pollution incidents within the Estuary during the first quarter of
this financial year. It was reported that there have been a number of overflow events from
the Malborough sewage treatment works and or the storm overflows close to South Sands
Beach, three of which have been in the last week.

The pollution events in the lower estuary coupled with the 'Polluted Waters (eutrophic)’
status of the water body in the upper estuary, which is currently strangled with an excess
growth of thick green algae over the mudflats and a red algal bloom, are extremely
worrying for the health of the Estuary

The Harbour Board is concerned by the fact that these pollution events would not have
been made public had we not been part of the “Beach Live” trial programme. We
understand that there are severe pressures on the sewer infrastructure in and around the
Salcombe Estuary but would like some reassurance that South West Water has a realistic
plan to tackle these problems in the short and long term.

Yours sincerely

Clir John Carter
Chairman Salcombe Harbour Board

Information:
AONB Estuaries Officer

Environment Agency
Natural England

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



ynordnou-uouusdmmm
0F999£7 'ON PuR|Su Ui paasisiBey Y/ TX3 PUeiSug woas(] U21axg ‘Due] UOPAY ‘SSNCH BiNSUINR] :2oYO PRISISIERY

2

Pa)SaAU] U9eq Sey g3 JoAo alep 0 "palinbal Buiussios jo s|ans| pue abelo)s JO SSWN|oA

ay1 aquosald yolum ‘spiuad [ejuswiuotiaus ybnosy) ‘Acusby juawuosaug ayy Aq pajenbal

s| uonesado Jvy) pue Ajjenb Jsiem Buiyieq 109j01d 0} Jepio u] ‘swesbold desmg ues|D

ay} ybnouy; (Buiussaios Jepaq pue abeio)s LIS pasealoul Jo uoisiaosd auy) Ag) panoldw ussqg
Apeaije aney Auepy “Joyream jam Buunp Buipooyy woly Auadoid:pue seshoy Josjoid o) psubisep
ale Ay "iomeu abelomes ay) Jo Hed |elJuasSSe UB aIB SMOHSN0 LWIO)S Jey) asiubooal

o} Juepoduwl s1 3 “Jepe| JnoA Ui 8siel noA suiaouod Ajenb eluswiuoliaug auy) Buneoaidde jsiys

, ‘yoeaq
spues UINog Je el sy Buunp uoddns sy} Joj [19UNOD JPULSIC] SWeH Yinog pue pleog JnogJeH
aqUIoojeS 941 U10g 0} sHuey) AL ssadXe 0} 9| OS|e DI0IRISY) PINOM | "MJOM SAJEAOUUI SIU)
10} JBISIUIN JUBWUCLiALT o) Aq pasield LDag SABL PSA[OALI SIOPJOUDNELS JOUI0 SU} PUB J8JBA
1S9M UINog pue Ajjeuoneu pasiubooal ussq sey 1sap WNog au) ul paisauoid Ajjeiiul ‘e ey,

"SPJEMUO GLOZ
woy soiape 211gnd yans salinbal yoium ‘aaizoaaiq sialepn Buiyieg meu ay) jo uoneiusws|dul
Japim au} 10} uoneledasd ul usyeuspun Bulag S| SIYL U0 AJUO BB SMO|HDA0 LLUI0)S

uoiym jo ‘Ajenb Joyem Buyieq o) sysit jenusod auy) o} se ‘ajgissod se s} jeal 0} 9S0|2 Se Ul
‘siasn yoeaq Buisiape Jo speuaq oignd Japim 8y} Buissasse si e} 8U | "WNIo- Seag Jsues|d
Bljeg sy} jo diysiosuods sy Japun |eH) |euciieu e jo yed st SAIT yoeag, ‘eleme aq ||im noAk sy

|ell] 9AIT yoeayg

‘Auedwon sy} 0} JUBASJRI ale jey; sioadse asoy) Buissaiboud Em JBJepA 1SOAN YInoS
JBY) S)BJISUCLUSP MOJ9( SILSWIWIOD AL JBY) SASI1|ag pUB pasiel aAey NoA suIaouo? auy; asiuboosl
| Jey} painsse aq asea]d 'senss| anode ay) Buipielial L Loz AN €1 10 818 JnoA 104 noA juey |

ALITVNO
HILYM INRIVNLST ® AT HOVIE “YILVM ONIHLVE SANVS HLNOS 3EN0D1VS

JaueD 4|0 Jeeq
LLOZ 1snbny L

ngs sOL
uons(g

aquioojeg
PUBNS3UUAA

20O INogIeH aquoojes

pIeog JNOQIEH SqUOd[ES UBWIEYD
Jayed r 1o

24D ATFAUHVYH NI - NVIWHIYHD JHL WOHd

S/ 1+Ey T6E10 Xed $00SHY T6E 10 2uoydsa] YH/ TX3 PUEjBul *ucas(] 4919%3 *SUET UOPAY ‘9SNOH BNSUILS

D7d dNOYD




pue weisAs abielomas abpugsbury sy Jeinoied ul pue Aenisa Jaddn ay oju sabieyosip
1eu) soaye jenusiod sy uo pasnooy uonebisaaul InQ (JSSS) 1saIslu] oljuslog [eoadg

10 sug Azenjs3 abprgsbury pue squosjes sy} uo oedw A8y} uiny Ul pue sjew [ebje -osew
uo oedw Jiay; pue Aiensa taddn syt Ul sjusLnu Jo s82.nos ay} ojul ‘Aousby Juswiuoaaug
ay) pue pue|Buz jeinjeN Aq pajowo.d ‘suonebisaaul papuny Auedwlod au3 (/002 Y|

"BaJe SIY} Ul USYEHSpUN YJOM BU)
uo noA sjepdn o0} Addey we | pue Aienjse sy} ui swoolq [eBje uo sayonoy os|e Ja)s| JNoA o |

Aenp J91ep) Sulien)s3

"‘aouepuspe pue indu) suciesiueBlo oA aWodjaMm PINoM pue uLinihe sy 1o} psuued
Bunesw dnoug) uosier yoeag jeuoiBal sy} 1e passnosip 29 01 el au) 1909dxa AN} | sJowsylng

‘ajleuuofsanb

38U} Ul PaISA0D SISJJEW U] UC SMBIA 4838 UBd Ay} Jey) 0s ‘pleog JNoA 0} sjgejieAe apeul S| yul|
B} ‘PRUSICEISD S0UO JBU] 8INSUS 0] INOABSPUS (M | Pa)e|diuod 80U0 Sispjoysels JUBAsjel e
0] PajeINoLID MUl BY) pue a)Is qam ISy} uo payoddns aq [im Yoiym 2land auj 1o} alieuuolissnb
Joeqpes) o1u0.081e Uk Buidojaasp aJ0ialay) ale Bla(] ‘W04 SBag Jaues|s) ay) ul sisued
Jayjo yum uonounfuos uj ‘suonelw| pue sseujniesn sjl uo sapted palsalaluUL ||B Lo} Yorgpes)
Joj Buroo) st ‘[eu] sy} Jo Juswissasse s Jo Hed se ‘elaq jey) Buiou Yuom st )l pue |eu)

B Sl iU} Jey) asiseyduwua-aJ 0} 91| PINCM | ‘SLOD|SM SJB SJUSLULLIOD PUB 3orq paa) JNok ISIIUAA

'S8l
12 abusjeyo 2 S|y} Sye 0} SUIqLUOD SBLUJSLLIOS JBABMOY SUOHEDO| Jasse [ENPIAIPU] pue sjeubis
SUOHJEOIUNWILIODA|D] QIO WD) DA|0SAL 3[qIssod JoAalaym PuUe $BSNED 8y} purjsiapun

0} AouaBy JuswuolIAUg Sy} Yim Bupiiom sie sm pue payiou g 03 SjusAs ||Ids as|e} Jo)

ysim Jou saop Auedwod ay) AishoiagQ paisod jou ale sBujutem oignd ‘sl ag 03 Jou N0 sUIN}
WaAe |ds e J1 ‘jeul os sjqissod se Apdwold se siapjoyayels jueas|al BuisiApe pue ejep auy}
BuisAleue a.e am ajqissod Jaaasaum Alues| “Aem siy} Ul peloaye SI SMOJLISA0 aqUIOD|eS au) jo
2U0 pue pajodeal Bulag sjuaas |ids as|e) SWOS Ul NSl UBD SiU]  “suoiejiul Jusudinbs awos
0} j09[dns ‘suolEeo0] JO Jagquinu & Ul ‘si a1 wolj Jyblelis paausp ejep mel Buisn Ajgleunuon

‘pasiuboosal
usaq aABy am Jey] ‘'wa)sAs Buiuodal ay) Jo Juswdopasp sIYl Jo) st} sBuiuiem jjids st [,
pejewone apiacid o} ABojouyss) AT sy Jo uoneoldde au) Buipusixs si ‘BUIOp MOU S| JSIBAA

ISSAA UINOS Jeym UanamoH A|gnd sigejieae a4 (1S PINOM LoRELLLIOUI 3U} ‘AjoAijoadsonai
pauocdal g o) alam sJUSAS [ids auy ybBnoylje jey) suesw siy| siuaas (ds ueoiyubis

Aue j0 AoueBy Juswuolaug sy 0} Buipodsl UOSESS JO PUS PYIPNE S1BY(I.) 0} Pa|BISUl AUl
sem Juswdinbe siy] uswdinbe (WQ3) Bulonuow uojeinp pue Jusae Buieisul Aq pajgeus
Juswiaainbal Jusal € st stojem Buiyleq 1e SJUSAS MOJUSAO Jo BuIplosal aU} ‘@A0ge aU) UDAID

JUBWISSAUl sIy) Jo Hed se uonosjold sbelols WIo)s pue

UONOSLLISIP IS[OIA BAYIN WO} SHijeuaqg Apealje aquodles ‘aleme aJe nok sy ‘adoing ul sisjem
Buiyieq isaulj ou} J0 SwWoS }SE0G 0} UOIBAI B} S|GELS 0} JSE0D [|BMUIOT) PUB UOAS( SU) puno.e

Page 114



vewlieyn
AanieH usy

7

Aj2J90uIs SINOA

‘Ayenb Jsjem suLEniSs Jopm ay)
Buinoadwi 1o} suejd Juswiisaaul 8Inin} JNo pue [} SAI yoesg, 3y} ul uoijedioiued no yjog jo
sjjeuaq Japim aus pajubiiybiy pue uomsod auy) Aie pediay sey uogeLwIoul sAoqe sy adoy |

‘aoe(d ui | sjuswaAosdLL

asay} Jo) Buipuny ey} pue g0z Y2Jel LS S aWayos ayy 1o} aiep uopeusws|dul pealbe

ay| -dojansp o) siew |ebje Joy [enusiod ay) sonpal aioesey) pue sindur Jusuinu Buionpal

Agq Ajljenb Jatem jijauaq |m Juswaiinbai sil] '$19sSe N0 0] pajelal JouU JUSLUYDIED 8y} Ul S32N0s
asnyip jueoylubis paulews. asay) yey) Buisiubosal isjiym ‘AALS UOISISD) Je usbouu JO [eAowal
[euosess ay) Joj apirold 0} paau B SEM 18U} e} Ppapn|ouod salphls asaly) JO SWoNo ayl

‘Justuyoyes sy Ul Buyieasad

$82Jn0s uopnjjod asnyip 1830 JO IXSJU0D I8pIm U} Ul sebieyosIp asay} JO S1oaYd [elus)od
oy} paoeld os|e diom AsAns syl Buiney aiem (AMLS) SHIOM Jusiuieal) aBemas uoisian

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Please reply to: Cllr J Carter

Salcombe Harbour Office, Whitestrand, Salcombe, Devon, TQ8 8BU
Direct telephone: 01548 843791  Direct fax: 01548 842033

E-mail: salcombe.harbour@southhams.gov.uk

Mr K Harvey CBE
Chairman, Pennon Group plc
Peninsula House

Rydon Lane
Exeter Our ref: IG
Devon EX2 7THR 27 October 2011

Dear Mr Harvey

SALCOMBE SOUTH SANDS BATHING WATER, BEACH LIVE AND ESTUARINE
WATER QUALITY

Thank you for your letter of 13 August, which Salcombe Harbour Board discussed at its
recent meeting.

It was encouraging to read of the improvements which you have in hand, in particular in
relation to the removal of nitrogen from Gerston STW by 31 March 2015 and the
development of Beach Live. We appreciate also your support for our phosphate-free
initiative and our work together on Scrape The Plate.

However the Board has asked me to write to you again because of our concern about
storm outflows from Malborough. Whilst we recognise that storm outflows are unavoidable
from time to time, two points especially concern us:

I. we were alarmed by the frequency of the outflows which Beach Live was revealing.
You say that at least one of the alerts was false but nevertheless we would like to
know what plans you have to reduce the frequency of these outflows and what you
expect the yearly incidence of storm outflows to be;

ii. whilst outflows may be unavoidable, the Board would like to know whether there is
anything that can be done, or is planned, to reduce the impact of these spillages.
You mention that, under the Clean Sweep programme, some sewage treatment
plants have increased storm storage and better screening: has this been installed at
Malborough, or are there plans to do so?

The reason why the Board attaches such high importance to these issues is that storm
outflows from Malborough pollute the stream which runs right across the middle of South
Sands beach, one of the premier and most popular bathing beaches in Salcombe, with a
sailing school and two of Salcombe's larger hotels, and our only EU Blue Flag beach.

Page 117



The Board and South Hams District Council has worked very hard over the last few years
to safeguard the water quality at South Sands and to regain the Blue Flag which we lost in
2007. We achieved that this year and it would be truly devastating to lose the Blue Flag
now because insufficient priority was being given to limit the impact of storm outflows from
Malborough. | hardly need add that it would be a really serious matter if these outflows
were to endanger the health of children playing on the beach.

| would therefore like to press you over whether your company can do anything more to
reduce the frequency of storm outflows, or mitigate their effect.

Yours sincerely

Clir J Carter
Chairman
Salcombe Harbour Board

Page 118



yn-ordnosd-ucuuadmmm
0F999£T "ON pur[Sug Uy posansiSey M/ 73 PueSug ‘uoA(] 4a1ax] ‘BUET UOPAY ‘9SNOH BNSUIUD, 1820 paJaistiay

"SJUSAS MOJLIBA0 Jo Bujniodal pajipne |eulj ay} jo Joadsal

Ul SISLUIROSIP SARY S|IEWUS Y} JBY) UOSEDI S{U} JO) St )| "a|qissod se s} |28 0) 880|0 se
S|Ge|IBAB UOIIBULLIOJUI SU3 S3EW O} X230 JpNE ou UlIM a)IS Wol) Ajoalip papodal ale Sjusas
MojHaA0 Juesiubls Ajjeliusiod ‘pasiwiuiw aie dljgnd syt 0] $)Si Jey] a.nsus 0] Japlo U|

‘S|lewa aalquoeag auy) sjesouab

0} $OMS 2y} WO} S|eubls paplooal pue Bjep UCEINP PUE JUSAS SU} pue BLISIIO SIU} posh usy}
apn ‘Alenb usiem Buigieq pajpaye Aleiusiod § alojeq 104 sjelado 0} sAey pinom ableyossip

e Buoj moy ss9SSE PIN0o oM UYolum Ag w3 au} Uim eUalIo padojsasp am aAyoeeg Jo Led sy

"SIUDAD MOHBA0 103 sawl} dois pue Lels au) spaooal uswdinbs syl "sAioasIp

pesial 8y} Jepun uawaiinbai e se pejjesui jusiudinba Buuoyuow uoleInp pue JUsAs
peYy aABY SMOILBA0 saly) ||y ‘uciels Buidwind abejjia ubnosoqe pue uolels Buidund
spueg yinog ‘sis||ind alom asal] ‘spuesg yinog e Alenb ssjem Buiyieq sy uo Bunoedw
- Allenusiod se PayiUSPI 2JaM SMO|USAC WIS PALIGLUOD a3y} ‘SAloalIp siajem Bulyieq
pasiaal 8y} Jepun paldinbal 'sa|yoid Jarem Buiyleq y3 su) jo waswdojaasp ay) ybnoy |

anssl siy uo (w3) AousBy JusWuoAUT oy} pue (DAHS) [12unod PuIsig sweH yinos
Y3oQ Uim pey sael dm SUOISSNOSIP U MOjag PBUIINC SABL | "SUCHIEJIIJOU SAITYoESY
3y} Jo Joadsal Ul SUBSLULLOD JNOA SJoU | PUB SUISOUOD JaYLIN) JNOA INoge Jeay 0} ALIoS We |

‘alnin) sy} ol syjeusq Ayenb sejem saaiep disy 01 SNURUOI |IM SSABIHUI 9saU) adoy

SM ‘Alen)se sy) punoJe SSLWBYDS [BJUSLLLIOIIAUS JBPIM J0) Hoddns panuiuod Jno pue (M1 S)
SHION JUaLLjeal | abemag uojsiac) je pasodoud sjuswaaoidy) sy ylog Aq pebeinosus

81 pJeoq nogiey auy) jey) [njeielt we | ‘L 10z 1840100 LZ 9U) JO Jana| JnoA 0} Jaypng

ALNYNOD
HILVM INRIVNLST ® SAITHOVEE “H3LVYM ONIHLYE SANVS HLNOS I8N0 TVS

JsueD J)10 seaq

L 102 I9qUISAON ¥l

Nngs s0L
uoAs(

aquioojes
PUBJSSRUAA

30O INOgIeH agLIodjes
pleog Jnoglel aquioses
uewlieyn

Japed r Ao

39D AFAHVH NI - NVIWHIVHD 3HL WOoud

SLIVPY T6E10 XEd voo@w T6€10 duoydajal YH/ TX3I PUBBUY ‘UOASQ US19X] ‘aue UOPAY '2SNOH BINSUIUad

274 dNO¥D

N OBPENId

‘.



"210Z Ul Buipuedxa 0} papiWILIOD S JBJEAA ISSAA YINOS

yolym aarjyoeegq jo Juswidoj@asp aininy ayj adeys padiay aaey paajoaul sssseoud

3} U0 XOBQPS3} IN0A "[el] SAITYORSg 8y} Ul uoiesado-02 INoA 10j syuey) AL pusixa o} 3|
pjnom | uiebe souQ “spues Yyinog je Ajenb usjem Suiuyeq pue sjesse ino Jo souewiousd oy}
jo Joadsal Ul pey aaey Aewl noA sulsouod Aue saiyijenb Ajny enoqe uoieuLIoul 94} ey adoy |

‘Uosess

2102 aui Jog snies Bej4 anig Joj uopeoldde Aue 1oy Jojoey Buniwy e aq jou pjnoys Ayenb’
1o1em Ausnbasuo) piepuess auljspinb sy Buipsaoxs AjjeuiBlew {gz jo 1no) sidwes suo
Aluo yum ‘| Loz teeh siyy uieBe spiepues (Jus||eoxe) sulapinb yn ey} jow sey Jotem Buiyieq
Spueg Uinog ey} pauujuod aaey enaq jey) poda: o} pases|d ale am aAoge a3 Jo by u)

‘spiepue)s

alninj au} yum seyem Buiyieq spues uinog jo aoueldwiod A9y 8y} Ul Jiys aaiebsu
JueoiuBIs e si alay} ssejun Ajxun ase sjuswanoidu Jayuny Ajuenbsesuosn -piepuels
Jusioyns, syj si siojem Bulyieq |(e Jo) G0z Joi 196Ie] SJUSWILIDAOL) 8| ‘spiepuels

Ma3U 3y} Japun poob, se palisse|d eq o} A[9YI| S SpUBS YINOS jey) palesipul v sy} elep
11-800Z Y} Uo paseq " Jusj|9oxs, pue poob, ‘Jusioyns, ‘ 100d, SpiepUELsS JNo; $}9S SAI0RIID
MaU 3y "aAnoalip siejem Bullyleq pesiasl 9y} Japun spueg yinog Jo soueldwod Ajox|

8y} jo Juswssasse Jiay) ybnouy) v ay) Ag USALIP a9 pinom siy} SJuaLWRA0IdW| a1mny 0} Sy

‘Alfenb Jeyem Buiyieq o} ysii JueolIUBIS € ) JOPISUOD J0U Op A8y} SB | 10Z Ul WEaNS aquuo?)
Jojluow Jou pip w3 sy} jey) Bunou yuom oq osie ybBiw | “wauyy uj Buikeid jsuiebe asiape o}
paubls Apusuewlad aie [BMUIOD Ul SWESNS JBY) UOSEal SIU} oy St )| Juesaid aq shemie |im
}S1 8Os Jey} uesw ||im sUOIIPUOD punoibyoeq jey) pue (siajem Buiyleq Ajuc) Ajjenb Jajem
Weal}s Joj spiepuels [e2160|0LS10E] OU 9B 3J2U] 1Y) S)jou 0} Juepodul] St )| SAOGE B} USAID)

"S3SH [elusiod o} Bunnquiuod os|e sulelp 19jem aoelNs 0} suojosuuod [eBejy pue sebieyosip
ajeAld ‘ebeutelp ueqgin pue feinynouBe ssnyip yim Ajijenb soyem wesaljs pue Buiyieq o)

sl AfUO SU} JOU 21 SMOJLISAO WIO)S JeU} 8siuBooal o} Juenodul os|e S| )l JOASMOH ‘(Buipooy}
woyy Auedoid pue sewoy Jo uoysajosd ay) Jo)) Weshs abelomes su) Jo JusuodLuod [eljusssa
Ue ale SMOjHSA0 Wwlols Jey} ssiuboosal noA jey) [nyelelt ale pue Ayjenb ssjem Suiyeq

0} sxsi1 8y} BuipseBai ueouoo spieog JnogleH ay) areys pue sjeoaidde Ajny am Azes|o

‘uoseas

Buiyieq auy Jo js81 a3 YBNoIY} Pa1INSoO SJuBA3 {lids JueoyiuBis Jayuny ou Apusnbasgng

V3 oY) Yyim sjuswisrcidw paalbe pue mojLaA0 s19(|InD je eusius Buipodas pue
uoyeINBYUCD BU) PemaIAS M SIL} USNID "SJUSAS MOIHUBAO (831 1am ASU} Jey) SASlaq JOU Op
am Ajjusnbasuo) ‘sls UO PapPJOdal SEM EIEP BU) YDIYM Ul ABm aUj) pue 3siou 91uoIioe|e, Ag
PasSnEd aJem 9s3y L "saylds 0} anp aioMm SJUSAS 8saU} JO [jB Jel) PauLIUOD 0S|e SBY ‘MOJLIBAO
SIBIIIND Wod} L LOZ Isnbny g1 oy} 0} dn sjusAe papodses g SU} JO MBIASI B eiolSyuN
‘uosess Buiyieq sy} Buunp [ids Jou pip uoljels Buidwind abejIA ybnologjepy pue uones
Buidwnd spueg yinog jey) podai o} pesesid we | ‘elep aquIodjeg Y} pamalral SABY SN

Page 120




7

AjaJeouls sINOA

‘Pl 691 0080 Uo aulidiay @s.y 1no |80 ases|d

‘saliinbus [eiauUsH Jje Jo4 "a JoBIUOD 0] SjENSSY 10U Op ases|d Jeyew siy ur djay Jeyuny Aue
40 8q UeD | J| "aplAC.Id O} Wie am SDIAISS JO SpJepUE]S Sy} Ulejdxa yoiym sisjyes| sjuawndwo)
pue sjule[dwo) pue asiWold JOWOISND NG Pasopud aaey | ‘saulepinb sauspuodsaiio
SJRJEAN 1SS UInog yiim Buidasy Ul pue noA o} |nydisy useq sey Aldal siyy jsni |

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Please reply to: Cllr J Carter

Salcombe Harbour Office, Whitestrand, Salcombe, Devon, TQ8 8BU
Direct telephone: 01548 843791  Direct fax: 01548 842033

E-mail: salcombe.harbour@southhams.gov.uk

Mr K Harvey CBE
Chairman, Pennon Group plc
Peninsula House

Rydon Lane
Exeter Our ref: IG
Devon EX2 7THR 20 February 2012

Dear Mr Harvey

SALCOMBE SOUTH SANDS BATHING WATER, BEACHLIVE AND ESTUARINE
WATER QUALITY

Thank you for your letter of 14 November which, as | think you know, | tabled for
discussion at the last meeting of the Salcombe Harbour Board.

The Board very much welcomed the way in which you addressed our concerns about the
discharges from the Malborough Village and South Sands pumping stations, and your
assurance that nearly all the discharges which were reported through BeachLive turned
out to be false alarms as the result of electronic noise.

The Board appreciates that the only standards which apply are to bathing water and that
there are none for streams. We also recognise that, as you say, storm overflows are not
the only pollution risk to streams. But it is just because South Hams District Council has
worked with the local farmers to tackle the risk of bacteriological contamination from
agricultural sources in South Sands, that we are so anxious to minimise any other source
of pollution.

It is good news that DEFRA has confirmed that the South Sands bathing water quality
again met the UK guidelines in 2011. That should enable us to renew the Blue Flag there,
which is so important to the harbour. It is good to know that you share our concerns about
this and that you appreciate how publicly sensitive this issue is for us.

Like you, | hope that this correspondence will have settled the matters between us, but |

will certainly take up your kind invitation to write further if we again have cause for concern
about the discharges from Malborough or South Sands.

Page 123



Yours sincerely

Clir John Carter
Chairman, Salcombe Harbour Board

Page 124



AGENDA
ITEM

Agenda ltem 1e

12 SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL

AGENDA
ITEM

12

NAME OF COMMITTEE

Salcombe Harbour Board

DATE 3 February 2014

REPORT TITLE MATTERS FOR FUTURE
CONSIDERATION

REPORT OF Salcombe Harbour Master

WARDS AFFECTED All South Hams

Summary of Report

To identify matters for future consideration by the Harbour Board.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Harbour Board RESOLVES to note the report.

Officer contact:

lan Gibson — 01548 843791 (Internal 7104)

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Harbour Board Constitution states that Matters for Future

Consideration should be reviewed by the Board at each meeting.

2. MATTERS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

2.1 Harbour Board Dates

2.1.1 The following dates have been set for Harbour Board Meetings:

e 31 March 2014 (Quay House Kingsbridge at 1600)
e 2 June 2014
e 14 July 2014

» 29 September 2014

Page 125




2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Performance Management

2.3.1 Reviewed quarterly with the report for the 4th quarter of financial
year 2013/14 being presented on 2 June 2014.

Customer Satisfaction Survey

2.4.1 A customer satisfaction has been conducted annually since 2007.
It is the intention to compliment the in office survey with an on line
edition this year. The results of the 2014 survey will be reported to
the Harbour Board in November 2014.

Opening of the Kingsbridge Pontoons

2.5.1 The works to complete the Kingsbridge Berthing Improvements
project is planned to complete by 31 March 2013.

2.5.2 Itis proposed that an opening ceremony takes place at the
Pontoons, after the 31 March Harbour Board Meeting, at 1800.

2.5.3 The Rivermaid Ferry has agreed to participate in the ceremony,
providing a platform from which to serve refreshments.
Year End Budget Report

2.6.1 To be presented to the Board in July Annually.

Revenue Budget and Review of Fees and Charges.

2.7.1 The annual revenue budget for the following financial year will
normally be brought to the Harbour Board for consideration in
September annually.

2.7.2 The Harbour fees and charges will be reviewed annually and
brought to the Board for consideration directly after the Budget in
September annually.

Harbour Board Annual Report

2.8.1 The Harbour Board Annual Report will normally be presented at
the July Board meeting annually.

Harbour Annual Inspection

2.9.1 To take place in July Annually. Next year's inspection will take

place on the morning of 14 July 2014 before the scheduled Board
Meeting.

Page 126



2.10

2.11

2.9.2 The Harbour’s Designated Person will be invited to attend.

Compliance with the Port Marine Safety Code

2.10.1 The Harbour is audited bi-annually by the designated person. A
report of the Audit forms part of the agenda of this meeting.

2.10.2 The next inspection will be in December with the results being
reported to the Board in February 2015.

Long Term Security of Tenure

2.11.1 The Strategic Business Plan 2012-2017 set out within its key
Strategic Objectives task 4.1 - To consider future boating trends
and provide suitable and appropriate facilities and Services
through an annual Harbour Board Workshop.

2.11.2 The third Harbour Board annual workshop will be held in October
2014, date to be confirmed.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1

3.2

Statutory Powers: Local Government Act 1972, Section 151. The Pier
and Harbour Order (Salcombe) Confirmation Act 1954 (Sections 22-36).

There are no other legal implications to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1

There are no new financial implications as a result of this report; however
this is not necessarily the case for the work which will follow.

RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1

The risk management implications are:

Risk/Opportunity Risk Status Mitigating and Management

Impact/ Likelihood/ | Risk Actions
Severity | Probability | Score

The Harbour Authority is
striving to deliver an
improving service to harbour
users.

The Harbour Board,
considers many routine
issues annually, topical
items will be brought to the
Board as they arise. The
objective being a better
service in a safe
environment for estuary
users.

Page 127




Corporate priorities
engaged:

Community Life
Economy
Environment

Statutory powers

The Pier & Harbour (Salcombe) Order Act 1954

Consideration of
equality and human
rights:

There are no equality or human rights issues with this
report

Biodiversity None
considerations:
Sustainability None
considerations:
Crime and disorder None

implications:

Background Papers:

Strategic Business Plan 2nd Edition dated 26 March 2012.
Constitution of the Salcombe Harbour Board (as adopted
by Council on 25 June 2009).

Harbour Board Constitution (as adopted by Council on 25
June 2009).

Appendices attached:

None

Page 128




Agenda ltem 2

Salc Harb 03.02.14
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF

THE SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD
HELD AT CLIFF HOUSE, SALCOMBE ON MONDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2014

Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance o Denotes apology for absence

@ | Clir R J Carter (Chairman) * | Mr G Burrell
* | Clir M J Hicks * | Dr C C Harling (Vice Chairman)
* | Clir KR H Wingate * | Mr M Mackley
* | Clir S A E Wright * | Mr H Marriage

* | Mr A Thomson

* | Mr M Taylor
9 | Clir H D Bastone (lead Executive

Member)
Item No | Minute Ref No Officers in attendance and participating
below refers

All Salcombe Harbour Master and Member Services
agenda Manager
items

SH.37/13 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Salcombe Harbour Board held on
18 November 2013 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

SH.38/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to
be considered during the course of the meeting, and the following were
made:

Clir Wright, Mr Burrell, Dr Harling, Mr Marriage, Mr Taylor and Mr
Thomson all declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in all related
agenda items by virtue of having moorings or paying harbour dues to the
Council, however as the Deputy Monitoring Officer had previously granted
a dispensation under Paragraph 8.1 (c) of the Code of Conduct (minute
SH.14/13 refers), all Members remained in the meeting and took part in
the discussion and debate on all agenda items.

Dr Harling also declared a personal interest in ltem 7 ‘Feedback from
Harbour Community Forums’ (Minute SH.40/13 refers), by virtue of being
a member of the Board of the Salcombe Yacht Club. He remained in the
meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon.

Page 129



SH.39/13

SH.40/13

Salc Harb 03.02.14
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Concerns were raised by one member of the public in respect of
potential overcrowding at Whitestrand pontoon if the Rivermaid was to
operate from there and he queried that if a proposal was to be made for
the Rivermaid to run from Whitestrand then all users could be involved in
the discussion. The Harbour Master did note that Whitestrand is now a
commercial landing pontoon and therefore not as busy as it used to be
and that there were currently no plans for the Kingsbridge Ferry to run
from Whitestrand, although it may run hourly trips from Whitestand at low
water.

Another member of the public was concerned that the ladders at
Kingsbridge had been removed and asked if the new pontoons would
include ladders or other means of exiting the water. In response, the
Harbour Master advised that there would be ways of exiting the water.

FEEDBACK FROM HARBOUR COMMUNITY FORUMS

The Board received verbal update reports from the Board Members who
attended the Harbour Community Forums. The Chairman began this
item by reminding Members of the Board of the importance of the
Community Forums as a vital part of the interface between the Board
and the community. The updates were as follows:

Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Association (SKEA)

The representative for SKEA advised that the Association now operated
almost as a virtual Association and used their website to exchange
information.

Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum (SKECF)

The representative for SKECF was not in attendance, however, another
Member had attended the latest meeting of the Forum and advised that no
contentious issues had been raised. The Forum had a newly appointed
Chairman and it was expected that he would be looking to boost numbers
of attendees.

Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club (KEBC)

Representatives of the KEBC were in attendance and raised their
continuing concern with the state of the slipway at Kingsbridge. It was
important that the slipway remained fully useable. The Harbour Master
advised that discussions had been held with South Hams District Council
who had responsibility for the slipway. A District Councillor in attendance
advised the Board that the Council did have a Capital Programme but that
decisions on how to spend capital monies were in the hands of the full
Council. The Board Members asked that their wish for the proposals of
the Harbour Master in relation to the Kingsbridge slipway to be taken
forward be noted.

South Devon & Channel Shellfishermen
There were no issues to raise.

Page 130



SH.41/13

SH.42/13

Salc Harb 03.02.14
Kingsbridge and Salcombe Marine Business Forum
The representative advised that there were no issues to raise.

VICTORIA QUAY PONTOONS

The Board was presented with a report that recommended the
replacement of Victoria Quay Pontoons. The Harbour Master introduced
the report and advised that an opportunity had arisen to replace the
Pontoons and, in view of their condition, he had hoped that the Board
could support the recommendation.

Following a brief discussion it was then:
RECOMMENDED

That Council be RECOMMENDED to bring forward the
replacement of the Victoria Quay Pontoons from the Financial
year 2015/16 to 2013/14 and finance the project from the Harbour
General Reserve.

PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE

The Board was presented with a report that appraised Members of the
Salcombe Harbour Authorities compliance with the Port Marine Safety
Code.

The Harbour Master introduced the report and answered questions of
clarity. Members were concerned about a lack of guidance for stand up
boarders who potentially did not appreciate that they could put
themselves and others at risk by their actions. Following a discussion on
this matter it was PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being put to the
vote declared CARRIED that an additional recommendation be included
to monitor activity for next year. Members also felt that links could be
placed on the Harbour Authority website to guidance issued by other
organisations.

Members also discussed the matter of flooding and it was agreed that
there should be direct and regular communication between the Board
and South West Water.

It was then:
RESOLVED that:

a) The findings of the Audit at Appendices 1 and 2 be noted;

b) The 11t edition of the Safety Management Systed dated 2
December 2013 as shown at Appendix 3 be endorsed and
published; and

c) The activity of stand up boarders be monitored for possible
inclusion in the report for next year.

Page 131



SH.43/13

SH.44/13

Salc Harb 03.02.14
REVIEW OF BYELAWS ENFORCEMENT POLICY

The Board Members were presented with a report to review the Harbour
byelaws. In presenting the report, the Harbour Master outlined how the
Marine Navigation Act 2013 made provision in relation to marine
navigation and harbours and which provided the Salcombe Harbour
Authority with the opportunity to apply for the powers to make Harbour
Directions.

Members discussed the enforcement policy at Appendix C and
recommended its adoption. Members then went on to discuss applying
to the Department for Transport (DfT) for the power to give Harbour
Directions. It was accepted that the Harbour Directions would not
exactly replace byelaws, however, Members generally felt it was
important that the Authority applied for the power to give Harbour
Directions as they would enable the Harbour to respond to change more
quickly. It was also noted that a Port User Group would need to be set
up, and, again, this enforced the importance of the Harbour Community
Forums.

It was then:
RECOMMENDED:

1. That the Enforcement Policy at Appendix C be adopted;
and

2. That Salcombe Harbour Authority applies to the DfT for the
power to give Harbour Directions under sections 40A-0D of
the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Marine
Navigation Act 2013.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

Members were presented with a report that set out the Harbour’s
performance against agreed Performance indicators (PIs).

The Harbour Master introduced the report and took Members through
the key elements and advised them of more detail where appropriate.

The report included previous correspondence with South West Water as
water quality was one of the Performance Indicators that had to be
reported. Board members were also keen to ensure that the water
quality was acceptable for bathers, and also for the shellfish industry.
Earlier points were reiterated that a channel of communication should be
in place between the Board and South West Water.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

Page 132



Salc Harb 03.02.14
SH.45/13 MATTERS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

The Board considered a report that identified matters for future
consideration by the Harbour Board.

The Board discussed arrangements for the next meeting on 31 March
2014 which would be in Kingsbridge and would take place prior to the
official opening of the Kingsbridge Pontoons.
It was then:

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

(Meeting commenced at 2.30 pm and concluded at 4.10 pm)

Chairman

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1a Item 8 - Victoria Quay Pontoons
	1b Item 9 - Port Marine Safety Code
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	1c Item 10 - Review of Byelaws Enforcement Policy
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	1d Item 11 - Performance Management
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	1e Item 12 - Matters For Future Consideration
	2 Minutes

